
 

 

                                                          ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION  
      Professional Development Center 

                                                          January 11, 2024 
      7:30 p.m.  

   
        
6:00 p.m.  Policy Committee 
6:45 p.m. Finance Committee 
  

     I.   Opening 

           A.   Call to Order      

           B.   Moment of Silence 

           C.   Pledge of Allegiance – Balfour Elementary School   

          *D.   Approval of Agenda     

 II.    Special Recognition and Presentations 
A. School Spotlight – Mr. Chris Tuft, Principal of Balfour Elementary 
B. Community Partner Spotlight – Mr. Chris Tuft, Balfour Elementary 

C. National Board Certified Teachers – Ms. Chandra Manning, Secondary Curriculum Specialist & 
BT Coordinator  

D. Board Appreciation Presentation – Dr. Aaron Woody, Superintendent  
E. Points of Pride – Ms. Mikayla Smith, Communications Specialist 
 

   III.    Superintendent’s Report – Dr. Aaron Woody, Superintendent 

o Data Update 

o Strategic Plan Update 

o Weather Protocol Update 
 

IV.    Public Comments 
Citizens who signed up to address the Board will be called on to make comments. Each individual 
speaker will be allowed three minutes for remarks. Issues or concerns involving personnel matters 
are not appropriate for the public comment setting. 

   V.    *Consent Agenda           
A. Approval of Minutes for December 14, 2023, Board of Education Meeting  
B.  Policies Recommended for Approval: 

• Policy 1310/4002 – Parental Involvement 

• Policy 4040/7310 – Staff-Student Relations 

• Policy 4110 – Immunization and Health Requirements for School Admission 

• Policy 4240/7312 – Child Abuse Related Threats to Child Safety 

• Policy 4720 – Surveys of Students 

• Policy 7232 – Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace 

• Policy 7820 – Personnel Files 

C. Personnel 
D. Overnight Field Trip-Asheboro High School DECA to Greensboro for Competition 
E. Overnight Field Trip-Asheboro High School DECA to California for Competition 



 

 

F. 2023-2024 School Fees Updated 
G. 2023-2024 Facility Rental Fees Updated 
H. Sole Source Waiver Request-Emerald Education 

 
VI.   Information, Reports, and Recommendations  

A. Policies for Review – Ms. Gayle Higgs, Director of Support Services 

• Policy 4130 – Discretionary Admission 

• Policy 4150 – School Assignment 

• Policy 4342 – Student Searches 

• Policy 6430 – Purchasing Requirements for Equipment, Materials and Supplies 

• Policy 7510 – Leave 

• Policy 7520 – Family and Medical Leave 

B. Asheboro City Schools Calendar 2025-2026 – Ms. Gayle Higgs, Director of Support Services 

C. Facilities Update – Mr. Jody Cox, Director of Facilities & Maintenance  

 

    VII. *Action Items 
A. 2022-2023 Audit Report – Ms. Sandra Spivey Ayers, Chief Financial Officer, and Adam 

Scepurek, Anderson Smith & Wike PLLC 

 
      VIII.  Board Operations – Chairman Michael Smith 

A. Board Committee Assignments 2024 

B. Calendar of Events  

  

       IX.   Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Item(s) requires action/approval by the Board of Education  

Asheboro City Schools' Board of Education meetings are paperless. All information for the board meetings may be 

viewed at http://www.asheboro.k12.nc.us under Board of Education the Friday following the board meeting. 

http://www.asheboro.k12.nc.us/
http://www.asheboro.k12.nc.us/
http://www.asheboro.k12.nc.us/


ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION  
     Professional Development Center 

      January 11, 2024 
        7:30 p.m.  

 

Addendum 
 
 

6:00 p.m. Policy Committee 
6:45 p.m. Finance Committee 
 

I. Opening 

 

II. Special Recognitions 

 

III. Superintendent’s Report  

 

IV. Public Comments 

 

V. *Consent Agenda 

 C. Personnel (updated) 

  I. 2023-2024 Bus Driver Salary Schedule (Revised) 

 J. Overnight Field Trip Request – Asheboro High School Choral Student to Wingate University for 

All-Carolina Select Choir  

  

VI. Information, Reports, and Recommendations  

 

VII. *Action Items 

 

VIII. Board Operations 
B. Calendar of Events (Updated) 

 

IX. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
*Item(s) requires action/approval by the Board of Education. 

 
Asheboro City Schools' Board of Education meetings are paperless. All information for the board  
meetings may be viewed at http://www.asheboro.k12.nc.us under Board of Education the Friday following the board meeting.  



Community and 
Collaborative   
LearningEmpowering Diverse Learners

Balfour Elementary 

Board Spotlight

January 11, 2024



Balfour's CIP 2023-2024 
GOAL 3: 

Provide opportunities for all students and 

families to feel valued and connected to the 

school community so that we create a more 

equitable school environment.



Collective Learning: Why 
Community is Important 



Collective Learning: 
Science of Reading Rope 



Collective 
Learning Benefits 
Everyone
Everyone can learn from each other and 

knowledge sharing helps foster a culture of 

personal and professional growth.

HISPANIC HERITAGE 

ASSEMBLY 

SPANISH SPELLING BEE  

ASIAN AMERICAN AND 
PACIFIC ISLANDER   

BLACK HISTORY  
ASSEMBLY 



Asian American Pacific 
Islander Arts Appreciation  



Spanish Spelling Bee



Improved communication, better 
learning

Collaborative learning through communication leads to improved 
retention and knowledge acquisition.

Retention
Collaborative learning improves retention, leading to better retention of 

knowledge.

Productivity, efficiency
Collective learning leads to increased productivity and efficiency 

in the classroom.



Collective Learning: 
Sharing Knowledge 
Together

Open Communication and Collaboration

We foster a community of open communication and collaboration, where everyone can 

share their thoughts and opinions freely.

Continuous Learning and Growth

We believe in continuous learning and growth, and encourage all members to seek out 

opportunities to expand their knowledge and skills.

Diversity and Inclusion

We value diversity and inclusion, and understand that everyone brings unique 

perspectives and experiences to the table.

Support and Empathy

We provide a supportive and empathetic environment, where members can learn from 

each other's successes and failures, and grow together as a team.



Hispanic Heritage History 
Assembly 



Black History Assembly 



Learning Together
Thank you!



 

 

ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES 

Professional Development Center 
December 14, 2023 

 
 

Policy Committee 

 
Committee Members Present:  
Michael Smith, Chairman   Adam Hurley   Gidget Kidd, Policy Chair  
Baxter Hammer, Vice Chairman  Hailey Lee   Linda Cranford 

  

Other Board Members Present: 

Melissa Calloway    Ryan Patton   Dr. Beth Knott 

 

Staff Members Present:  

Dr. Aaron Woody    Carla Freemyer   Gayle Higgs 

 

The meeting was called to order at 6:01.p.m by Chairman Michael Smith. MS. Gayle Higgs, Director of 
Support Services,  reviewed the following policies. 

 

• Policy 4342 - Student Searches 
o Includes changes in the first paragraph and Section A based on new state law G.S. 115C-391.2. 
o Updates the legal references. 

 

• Policy 6430 - Purchasing Requirements for Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 
o Modifies subsection E.3 to reflect a change to state law on competitive bidding requirements. 
o Fixes a legal reference in E.7. 
o Update the legal references. 

 

• Policy 7510 - Leave 
o Adds a new Section D about paid parental leave. 
o Updates the legal references. 

 

• Policy 7520 - Family and Medical Leave 
o Adds a reference to paid parental leave in Section M. 

 

• Policy 4130 - Discretionary Admission 
o Updates the legal references. 

 

• Policy 4150 - School Assignment 
o Updates the legal references. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:11 p.m. by Chairman Michael Smith. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Finance Committee 

 
 

Committee Members Present: 

Michael Smith, Chairman   Dr. Beth Knott, Finance Chair 

Baxter Hammer, Vice Chairman     

 

Committee Members Absent: 

Gus Agudelo    Phillip Cheek 

 

Other Board Members Present: 

Gidget Kidd     Linda Cranford  Adam Hurley 

Ryan Patton     Melissa Calloway  Hailey Lee 

 

Staff Members Present: 

Dr. Aaron Woody    Sandra Spivey Ayers 

 

Dr. Beth Knott called the meeting to order at 6:13 p.m. and referred to Ms. Sandra Spivey Ayers.   

Ms. Spivey Ayers reviewed the Needs Based Capital Improvement Grant application that will be presented for 

approval in the regular meeting tonight. The application requires the signatures of the Board Chair for the County 

Commissioners and the Board Chair for the Board of Education. Dr. Woody presented the request to the County 

Commissioners in September and was granted their approval to proceed. 

Ms. Spivey Ayers gave an update on the 2022-2023 financial audit. The audit is complete. Mr. Adam Scepruek, with 

Anderson, Smith & Wike PLLC, will attend the January Board meeting to present the audit for Board approval. 

There being no further business, Dr. Knott adjourned the meeting at 6:24 p.m. 

 
 

Board of Education  

 
Board Members present: 
Michael Smith, Chairman  Baxter Hammer, Vice Chairman     Phillip Cheek 
Gidget Kidd    Linda Cranford     Ryan Patton  
Dr. Beth Knott   Adam Hurley       Hailey Lee   
Scott Eggleston, Attorney  Melissa Calloway     
 
Board Members absent: 
Gus Agudelo      
           
Staff Members present: 
Dr. Aaron Woody   Anthony Woodyard   D.R. Cash 
Julie Brady    Gayle Higgs    Jody Cox 
Deanna Wiles    Chandra Manning    Angel Etheridge        
Sandra Spivey Ayers   Dr. Wendy Rich    Kelly Patton   
Sarah Beth Cox   Carla Freemyer    Christina Kinley 



 

 

Nikki Domally   Caitlyn Vogel    Dr. Ana Floyd 
Dylan Coleman   Josh McDonald 
 
 
Opening 
Chairman Smith called the meeting to order at 7:31 p.m. and welcomed all in attendance. Chairman Smith opened the 
meeting with a moment of silence. Chairman Smith then invited a student from South Asheboro Middle School to lead 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Upon motion by Phillip Cheek and seconded by Linda Cranford, the board unanimously approved the meeting agenda.  

 

Swearing-In 

Re-elected board members Ryan Patton and Gidget Kidd and newly elected board member Melissa Calloway were 
sworn in by Representative Neal Jackson. 

 

Special Recognitions 
A. Ms. Julie Brady, Principal of South Asheboro Middle School, presented the School Spotlight presentation titled 

Focus Friday Why? Focus Friday centers on STEAM, Kindness 101 One Text, One School, iReady Reward, 

and SEL.  

B. Ms. Julie Brady, Principal of South Asheboro Middle School, recognized the Episcopal Church of the Good 

Shepherd as their community partner. Ms. Brady shared how the church has supported the students at South 

Asheboro Middle School by providing backpacks as a part of the BackPack Pals program for several years.  

C. Dr. Shah Ardalan, President of Randolph Community College (RCC) shared a brief outline of the strategic plan 

for RCC. Dr. Ardalan emphasized that RCC needs to be aligned internally and externally to the community and 

its partners. Dr. Ardalan stated that RCC 2.0 stands for Relevance, Careers and Commitment. He shared that 

RCC must stay relevant, the core of the community college mission is jobs with a greater emphasis on career, 

and RCC will refresh the commitment to each other and the community.   

D. Ms. Gwendolyn Williams, former board member, shared her experience working for Asheboro City Schools, 

serving on the school board, and her passion for education and students. Ms. Williams stated that reading is the 

foundation of all learning, and she asked the board to continue to strive to prepare students for career and 

college success. She emphasized that diversity and inclusion matter. 

E. Dr. Aaron Woody, Superintendent, recognized Ms. Clara Grace Rush, a fifth grader at Lindley Park Elementary 

School, as the winner of the Asheboro City Schools Holiday Card Contest.  

F. Ms. Deanna Wiles, Director of K-12 Education, recognized Dr. Ana Floyd, Math Curriculum Specialist, as the 

winner of the W.W. Rankin Award. This award is given by North Carolina Council of Teachers of Mathematics 

(NCCTM) each year to honor individuals for their outstanding contributions to NCCTM and to mathematics 

education in North Carolina. This is the highest honor bestowed by NCCTM.  Dr. Floyd has been active with 

NCCTM for 20 years and has served many roles within the organization. Dr. Floyd has an unwavering 

commitment and passion for mathematics and is deserving of this award.   

G. Ms. Mikayla Smith, Communications Specialist, presented Points of Pride which featured a variety of student, 

staff, and district highlights. These included: 

 

Innovator of the Month – Ms. Lori Columbia, an English teacher at Asheboro High School, was chosen as the 

Innovator of the Month this month. Her #InnovateACS entry was of her students using their cell phones to call in to 

the Holocaust Museum to learn from the photos in a gallery walk. 

 

World Heritage Night at Balfour - On November 17, Balfour Elementary hosted their annual World Heritage Night 



 

 

for students and families to come together and celebrate heritages from all over. 

 

Business After Hours – On November 16, Asheboro City Schools hosted our first Business After Hours with the 

Asheboro/Randolph County Chamber of Commerce and it was a great success. 

 

Cultural Heritage Night at Donna Lee Loflin - Loflin Elementary also had its Cultural Heritage Night last month 

where they invited staff, students, and families to see different displays, play games, and eat together.  

Principal For a Day - Last month our principals had different business leaders shadow them for the day. Principal 

for a Day is sponsored by the Asheboro/Randolph County Chamber of Commerce. 

Family Math Night at Teachey Elementary - At Teachey Elementary Family Math Night, families visited 

classrooms where they set updated goals for student growth and engaged in a grade level math game to help 

support math skills.   

AHS Chorus Silber Bells Performance - On December 7th the Asheboro High School Chorus participated in the 

Silber Bells tour with Chad Silber, WFMY evening news Anchor, where they sang and helped Mr. Silber raise money 

for the Salvation Army. 

Special Olympics - Last week our students from elementary, middle, and high school participated in Special 

Olympics Basketball and did a fantastic job. We are so proud of their achievements. 

Allen Tate FUNDay – This is an event to support public education, the arts, and the United Way. Allen Tate agents, 

staff, and employees all contribute funds to support the event. Allent Tate Asheboro presented a check to Dr. Woody 

for Asheboro City Schools in the amount of $1,500. We will use the funds to provide scholarships for our students.  

Lunch Buddies - Our high school student ambassadors visited Mcrary Elementary to be lunch buddies for the 5th 

graders. This is a great way to build positive relationships. 

Robotics Clubs at NAMS and SAMS - Our CTE program is launching two robotics teams at North and South 

Asheboro Middle Schools. Mr. Satterfield will coach the team at NAMS, and Mr. Clodfelter will coach at SAMS. 

Zoo School Happenings – The Zoo School students had the opportunity to visit Davidson-Davie Community 

College to hear about the different pathways that are offered and tour the facilities. They also visited Snider Dairy 

Farm where they were able to interact with the farm animals. 

Winter and Holiday Celebrations – There are many winter and holiday celebrations happening throughout the 

district and you can feel the holiday spirit from the teachers and students. Some of these include, band and choral 

concerts, musicals, and the Polar Express at North Asheboro Middle School. 

  Superintendent’s Report 

Asheboro City Schools hosted a celebratory award ceremony on December 14 to receive the NCDPI Office of 
Early Learning True Trailblazer Award. This accolade recognizes districts that have adopted unique and innovative 
approaches that transform reading instruction to match current research and support all children in learning how to 
read. Only eight districts in the state receive this award, one for each region; we are proud to be the Piedmont 
Triad Region district chosen to receive this award. 
 

The North Carolina Department of Public Instruction Office of Early Learning joined Asheboro City Schools at 
Donna Lee Loflin Elementary to present this prestigious inaugural award to school district leaders. Principals and 



 

 

teachers from each elementary school, central office staff, and the superintendent were present to accept the 
award. The ceremony began with a presentation of the award, highlighting the important work that has been done 
in Asheboro City Schools to ensure the best literacy education for students. The ceremony then led to a parade 
around the school and ended with refreshments and pictures. 
 
“The intentional collaborative and proactive planning Asheboro City Schools did to support the Science of Reading 
implementation with fidelity is a model for North Carolina” – Amy Rhyne 
 
The event was a testament to Asheboro City Schools unwavering dedication to implementing evidence-based 
literacy practices. Over the course of the last three years, the district has worked diligently to make these changes 
happen.District leaders firmly believe in the investment of teacher professional learning and knew it was critical to 
allow time for the 150 hours required for this initiative. The Asheboro City School board voted on the addition of 
two professional learning days and four early release days to be added to the school calendar so teachers would 
not have to complete the training at night or on weekends. Central office administrators and school leaders 
engaged in LETRS for Administrators and Literacy for Leaders professional development. They worked as a team 
to plan LETRS training and set aside weekly time and support to implement new learning fully. The district also 
invested in an evidence-based curriculum to support the science of reading and assist with consistent 
implementation across the district. 
 
Dr. Woody stated “we are striving to be a place that lifts up kids and always puts student learning first” as he 
graciously accepted the award on behalf of the district. 
 
Dr. Wendy Rich, Assistant Superintendent/Chief Academic Officer, shared information about the implementation of 
the LETRS professional development. Dr. Rich thanked the board for allowing early release and additional 
professional development days on the school calendar to allow teachers time to complete the LETRS training. Dr. 
Rich credited our elementary teachers' hard work implementing LETRS as the reason for this award. She expressed 
her appreciation of our teachers and for the investment the district places on professional learning. 
 

 Public Comments 

 There were no public comments. 

 

 Consent Agenda 

A.   Approval of Minutes for November 9, 2023, Board of Education Meeting 

B.   Personnel (see list below) 

 

Asheboro City Schools  

Personnel Transactions 

 December 14, 2023 
 

*A. RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS/SEPARATIONS 

LAST FIRST SCHOOL SUBJECT EFFECTIVE 
Harris Robin CO Director of Equity and Family Engagement 1/1/2024 
Herzog Jodi NAMS 8th Grade Math 12/8/2023 
Kivett Elisha CO EC Program Facilitator (part‐time) 11/30/2023 
Ramsey Edward CWM 4th Grade 12/20/2023 
Williams Laura SAMS School Nurse 2/29/2024 

 

 

 



 

 

*B. APPOINTMENTS 

LAST 

 Alston 

Cranford 

FIRST  

Donyelle 

 Cindy 

SCHOOL 

AHS  

BAL 

SUBJECT 

LTIP/Instructional Assistant 
EC Support (temporary; part‐time) 

EFFECTIVE 

11/27/2023 

11/20/23‐01/31/2024 

Haley William CO Substitute Bus Driver 12/4/2023 
Johnson 
Johnson 
Thomas 

Sanchez 

Jennifer 
Laurie 
Roxanne 

Nichole 

CO 
CO  

DLL  

CWM 

Substitute Bus Driver 
Literacy Support (temporary; part‐time) 

Speech Language Pathologist 
4th Grade Instructional Support (temporary; part‐

time) 

11/13/2023 
10/01/2023‐06/30/2024 

1/3/2024 

1/3/2024‐5/31/2024 

 

 C. TRANSFERS 

LAST FIRST SCHOOL SUBJECT EFFECTIVE 

Bainville Scott CO Bus Driver to Maintenance 11/27/2023 

     

Asheboro City Schools 

 Personnel Transactions ‐ ADDENDUM  

December 14, 2023 
 
 
 

*B. APPOINTMENTS 

LAST FIRST SCHOOL SUBJECT EFFECTIVE 
Capel Kelsey CO EC Behavior Assistant 1/3/2024 

 

 Information, Reports, and Recommendations 

A. Ms. Gayle Higgs, Director of Support Services, reviewed the Policies for Review.  

● Policy 1310/4002 – Parental Involvement 

● Policy 4040/7310 – Staff-Student Relations 

● Policy 4110 – Immunization and Health Requirements for School Admission 

● Policy 4240/7312 – Child Abuse Related Threats to Child Safety 

● Policy 4720 – Surveys of Students 

● Policy 7232 – Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace 

● Policy 7820 – Personnel Files 

B. Ms. Gayle Higgs, Director of Support Services, defined the Parents’ Bill of Rights and explained the requirements 

of our district for the implementation. The Bill was passed on August 15, 2023, and is an act to enumerate the 

rights of parents to direct the upbringing, health, care, and mental health of their minor children. Local Boards must 

have policies in place that align with the Parents’ Bill of Rights by January 1, 2024. Ms. Higgs reviewed policies 

Asheboro City Schools already has in place that align with the Parents’ Bill of Rights. Ms. Higgs also reviewed 

parental rights as outlined in it. 

C. Dr. Ana Floyd, Math Curriculum Specialist, shared a Math Professional Development (PD) update. Dr. Floyd 

shared that all the elementary teachers have participated in two days of math PD to date this school year that 

focused on improving math instruction. Last year Asheboro City Schools and Randolph County Schools partnered 

in a two-year mathematics project called ARC (Asheboro-Randolph Collaborative). A total of 18 Asheboro City 

Schools teachers are participating in this project. Through the project teachers are deepening their knowledge of 

practices, routines, and content. Asheboro City Schools teachers are also participating in microcourses led by 



 

 

UNCG professors. Asheboro City Schools will partner with NC State University next year in Project AIM (All 

Included Mathematics) professional development for K-2 teachers.  

 

     *Action Items 

A. Needs Based Capital Improvement Grant – South Asheboro Middle School – Ms. Sandra Spivey Ayers, Chief 

Financial Officer, shared information regarding the grant and areas of concern at South Asheboro Middle School 

that need to be addressed and would be covered under the grant if awarded. This capital funding opportunity is 

awarded by NCDPI and requires a 15% match by Randolph County Commissioners. They unanimously approved 

for us to move forward with this grant application.  We selected Bobbitt and Brady as our Design Build Team. The 

preliminary budget for renovations at South Asheboro Middle School is estimated at $35 million. The county would 

match with $5.25 million. The process will take approximately three and a half years. We will also need assistance 

from the county to assist with the costs of mobile classrooms and furniture during renovations that the grant will not 

cover. The grant application is due on January 5, 2024. Upon motion by Ryan Patton and seconded by Phillip 

Cheek, the request was unanimously approved by the board.  

B. New CTE Course Request – Ms. Sarah Beth Cox, Director of Career & Technical Education (CTE) requested 

approval of courses AU21 Sustainable Agriculture Production I and AU21 Honors Sustainable Agriculture 

Production I. Upon motion by Gidget Kidd and seconded by Linda Cranford, the request was unanimously 

approved by the board.  

 
Board Operations  

A. Ms. Gidget Kidd, board member, shared information from the Delegate Assembly meeting at the NCSBA 

Annual Conference in November. 

B. Dr. Aaron Woody, Superintendent, led the discussion concerning board leadership for 2024. Dr. Woody 

requested nominations for the board Chair and Vice-Chair for 2024. Vice Chairman Baxter Hammer 

nominated Chairman Michael Smith to continue as the board Chairman for 2024. Ryan Patton seconded 

the nomination and the board unanimously approved. Phillip Cheek nominated Vice Chairman Baxter 

Hammer to continue as the Vice Chairman for 2024. Linda Cranford seconded the nomination and the 

board unanimously approved.  

C. Chairman Smith shared the two board members serving on the Calendar Committee this year are Gus 

Agudelo and Adam Hurley. 

D. Chairman Smith reviewed information regarding upcoming events.  

 

The next regularly scheduled board meeting will be on January 11, 2024, at 7:30 p.m. in the Professional 

Development Center, unless otherwise posted.  

 

Adjournment    

There being no further business and upon motion by Linda Cranford and seconded by Dr. Beth Knott, the board 

unanimously approved to adjourn at 9:45 p.m.  

 

          _______________________________________ 

          Chairman  

              

        _______________________________________ 

                     Secretary  

 

                   



 

 

 

 

 

 

Policies  

For  

Approval 



















































































*A. RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS/SEPARATIONS

LAST FIRST SCHOOL SUBJECT EFFECTIVE

Ragan Rebecca BAL Daycare Assistant (part‐time) 6/7/2024

Ramos Debra BAL Instructional Assistant 6/30/2024

*B. APPOINTMENTS

LAST FIRST SCHOOL SUBJECT EFFECTIVE

Auler Carrie SAMS Exceptional Children TBD

Clawson Pamela NAMS Exceptional Children 1/3/2024

Haithcox Kyndra SAMS School Nurse 1/22/2024

Kelley Rodney CO Substitute Bus Driver 12/18/2023

Asheboro City Schools
Personnel Transactions

January 11, 2024



ASHEBORO CITY SCHOOLS 
CERTIFIED APPOINTMENTS 

January 11, 2024 
 
 

 
NAME    COLLEGE/DEGREE    LICENSURE 
Auler, Carrie   Liberty University    Exceptional Children 
    B: Psychology 
 
Ms. Carrie Auler is recommended to teach exceptional children at South Asheboro Middle School 
(SAMS) for the remainder of the 2023-2024 school year. Ms. Auler has worked at SAMS as an 
exceptional children’s assistant in the comprehensive resource setting for the past 18 months. Prior to 
working at SAMS, Ms. Auler was a substitute, serving at the Early Childhood Development Center, 
North and South Asheboro Middle Schools, and Charles W. McCrary. We are pleased to welcome Ms. 
Auler to her new role as classroom teacher. Welcome Ms. Auler! 
 
 

NAME    COLLEGE/DEGREE    LICENSURE 
Clawson, Pamela  University of North Carolina at Greensboro Exceptional Children 
    B: Psychology 
 
Ms. Pamela Clawson is recommended to teach exceptional children at North Asheboro Middle School 
for the remainder of the 2023-2024 school year. Ms. Clawson has served as a substitute for Asheboro 
City Schools, while working as a nursery attendant at the YMCA. She also spent a summer as the Activity 
Director for the school age program at the YMCA. Ms. Clawson has a heart for students and believes all 
children can learn. We are pleased to welcome Ms. Clawson, a former Blue Comet, to the North 
Asheboro Middle School team. Welcome Ms. Clawson! 







Item ECDC Balfour Lindley Loflin McCrary Teachey SAMS NAMS AHS
Lost Books Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost
Field Trips * Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 
Band Camp /uniform cleaning $90
Chromebook/iPad Damage Fee up to $85 up to $85 up to $85 up to $85 up to $85 up to $85 up to $85 up to $85 up to $85
Lost Charger Fee $45 $45 $45 $45 $45 $45 $45 $45 $45
Lost Chromebook/iPad/Hotspot up to $299 up to $299 up to $299 up to $299 up to $299 up to $299 up to $299 up to $299 up to $299
Choral Ensemble $100
Cheerleading- extra gear Cost Cost 0-$150
ROTC Cleaning/Lost uniform $20 - $300
Graduation Cap and Gown $55-$95
Band Shirts Cost Cost
Athletic Team Gear Cost Cost
RCC dropped course (books & materials) Cost
RCC duplicate course (books & materials) Cost
*Payment is made from other sources for students who cannot pay.
Optional Club Activities
DECA Dues $50
AIM Club Dues $10
FFA Club Dues $20 $20 $15
Interact Club Dues $15
Key Club Dues $20
National Honor Society Dues $10
Health Occupations Club Dues $25
Glamor Gals Dues $10
Mustache Fraternity t-shirt Cost
Optional Fees
Yearbook $14-$18 $14-$18 $14-$18 $14-$18 $14-$18 $25 $25 $75
Student Pictures - Fall Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost
Student Pictures - Spring Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost
Spirit Wear $10-$30 $10-$30 $10-$30 $10-$30 $10-$30 $10-$30 $10-$30
Parking Spot $25
New York Band/Chorus Trip $700 +/-
Prom Ticket $30
ROTC Military Ball Tickets $10
Before-School Program $4/day
After-School Program $10/day $7/day $7/day $7/day $7/day $7/day
Before & After-School Program $12/day
Pre-K Tuition (paid slots) $575/mo
Locker - phys. education class $1
District 
Transfer into District/yearly per family $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250

** Updated January 11, 2024

School Fees 2023-2024



ASHEBORO CITY SCHOOLS 
 

Rental of School Facilities 

Fee Schedule 

2023-2024 
 

Providing school facilities for community functions such as meetings of a civic, 

recreational, cultural, or educational nature when sponsored by responsible 

organizations or groups is considered a desirable public service, but it is not 

considered a financial obligation on the part of the school system.   Priority for 

facility use will be given to community groups whose mission is similar or 

complimentary to that of the school district.  The following fee schedule for the 

use of school facilities is therefore established: 

 

     SCHOOL FACILITIES 
Additional Classroom Space Available for $25.00 per hour 

Custodial Fee - $35.00 per hour 

     Sound/Light Tech. & Equip. Fee for AHS Performing Arts Center - $50.00 per hour 

 
.  

 

 

Seating 

 

 

Location 

 

Fee - 4 hours 

or less 

Each  

Additional  

Hour 

1037 AHS Performing Arts Center $200.00 $50.00 

 200 AHS Walker Commons $100.00 $25.00 

200 AHS Professional 

Development Center 
$100.00 $25.00 

263 SAMS Theater $100.00 $25.00 

400 NAMS Theater $100.00 $25.00 

225 ECDC $ 50.00 $25.00 

200 McCrary $ 50.00 $25.00 

250 Loflin $ 50.00 $25.00 

244 Teachey $ 50.00 $25.00 

230 Lindley Park $ 50.00 $25.00 

400 Balfour $ 50.00 $25.00 



            
 

 

 

 

 

ATHLETIC FACILITIES 

 

 

Seating 

 

Location 

Fee - 2 hours  

or less 

Each Additional 

Hour 

1700 AHS Gym – not available for  

23-24 school year 

$150.00 $25.00 

3000+ AHS stadium  $250.00 $50.00 

  650 SAMS Gym $ 75.00 $25.00 

  500 NAMS Gym $ 75.00 $25.00 

Custodial Fee - $35.00 per hour 

 

 
 

 
CAFETERIAS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seating 

 

 

 

 

 

Location 

 

Fee if 

Kitchen is 

Used 

4 hours or 

less 

 

 

 

Each 

Additional 

Hour 

 

 

Fee for 

Cafeteria 

Seating Area 

Only  

4 hours or less 

 

 

 

Each 

Additional 

Hour 

289 AHS $ 75.00 $ 35.00 $ 50.00 $ 25.00 

188 SAMS $ 75.00 $ 35.00 $ 50.00 $ 25.00 

250 NAMS $ 75.00 $ 35.00 $ 50.00 $ 25.00 

135 CWM $ 75.00 $ 35.00 $ 50.00 $ 25.00 

150 DLL $ 75.00 $ 35.00 $ 50.00 $ 25.00 

400 GBT (Combination) $ 75.00 $ 35.00 $ 50.00 $ 25.00 

175 LP $ 75.00 $ 35.00 $ 50.00 $ 25.00 

Custodial Fee - $35.00 per hour 

Kitchen Manager Fee required if Kitchen is used for All Locations - $35.00 per hour 
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FEDERAL FUNDS NONCOMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT REQUEST

LEA Name and Unit Number: Asheboro City Schools, 761

Name and Title of Individual Submitting Request:
Deanna Wiles, Director of Curriculum and Instruction
Vendor Name:
Emerald Education
Federal Funding Source (including PRC):
ESSER funds
Scope of Work:
Emerald Education is the creator of Rise Career & Math Mini Lessons and Elevation Station Math
Games. Rise Career & Math Mini-Lessons are high-quality, standards aligned mathematics tasks set in
authentic career contexts that provide purposeful exploration and elevate student achievement.
Provided in the slide decks with teacher and student notes, these lessons can be used in small groups,
whole groups, or one on one.
The Games are designed for use in math classrooms to support students with developing procedural
fluency from conceptual understanding. Through game-based play, students have an opportunity to
practice skills and strategies as they master mathematics content.
In Asheboro City Schools, Emerald Education resources will be used by students in Kindergarten
through Grade 8 to address learning loss as a result of COVID-19. The high-quality lessons and games
will be used with students in small groups to address the skills and content they have not yet mastered.

Deliverables:
These resources provide our schools with:
-perpetual use of 48 lessons (16 per grade in grades 6-8 at both middle schools)
-Teacher Overview document and Facilitation Guide for lessons
-Elevation Station Math Games for grades K-8
-perpetual use of the games within our district
-Teacher Observation documents, Student game instructions, and Game materials
-one whole day of in person professional learning

Cost:
$113,750 + sales tax

Noncompete Justification: Select one or more of the procurement policy provisions below that best
describes the exception to the Uniform Guidance bidding requirements for procuring goods or services
valued $10,000 or greater with federal funds.

Inadequate Competition: After solicitation of a number of potential sources, competition is
determined to be inadequate. Bids were solicited and no responsive bid is received, or only a
single responsive bid is received and is rejected. Provide a copy of RFP or informal bid request,
non-responsive answers, and, if one bid was received a copy of the bid and reason for why it was
rejected.
Public Exigency:When life, safety or health of the public must be sustained through the
immediate delivery of products or performance of services or a critical agency mandate, statutory
or operational requirement must be fulfilled immediately. Please use the “other” box below to
provide a narrative to support the selection of this justification.



Highly Specialized Professional Services: The procurement of professional services should
be conducted through a bid process, the requesting unit can demonstrate that such services,
due to unique or special circumstances, can’t be procured in this manner. A resume or other
details about the unique qualifications of this supplier must be attached. In addition, please use
the “other” box below to provide a narrative to support the selection of this justification.

Highly Specialized Technical Services: Another supplier cannot be chosen because the
supplier provides services in connection with the assembly, installation or servicing of equipment
of a highly technical or specialized nature. In addition, please use the “other” box below to provide
a narrative to support the selection of this justification.
Proprietary Software / Hardware: The requested upgrade to proprietary software or hardware is
available only from this supplier, which performs the service only on a direct basis. Attach
documentation supporting that the hardware or software is proprietary and that only this supplier
can perform the requested upgrade.
Equipment Continuity: The requesting unit seeks equipment that must be compatible
with existing equipment and/or standardizing on equipment which is necessary to assure
interchangeability of parts. Please use the “other” box below to provide a narrative to support the
selection of this justification.

x
Curriculum Continuity: The requesting unit seeks curriculum that must be compatible with
existing materials. Please provide a narrative in the “other” box below to explain how the existing
materials are compatible with the requested material/services and how putting out for bid would
cause a financial or significant hardship. You must also demonstrate that the Supplement vs
Supplant compliance is being met for existing materials.

Amendment/Change Order: Requests, not covered under existing contract, where current
supplier is best positioned based on skill, knowledge, familiarity with the project to provide the
extra work resulting in a cost savings to the unit over the cost of a new supplier. This also
includes amendments that result in an extension of the term due to the successor contractor
bidding process being incomplete prior to expiration of the current contract.

X
Other (Please Explain in Detail):

Emerald Education is the only company that provides these materials. Using these resources,
our teachers will be able to provide students with mathematics intervention, support, scaffolding,
and extension aligned to our district’s instructional vision.



SALARY SCHEDULE

2023-2024

BUS DRIVER/BUS MONITOR

23-24

PAY PAY HOURLY

GRADE STEP SALARY

51 0 15.00

51 1 15.91

51 2 15.91

51 3 15.91

51 4 15.91

51 5 16.18

51 6 16.18

51 7 16.18

51 8 16.18

51 9 16.18

51 10 16.18

51 11 16.41

51 12 16.41

51 13 16.41

51 14 16.41

51 15 16.41

51 16 17.28

51 17 17.28

51 18 17.28

51 19 17.28

51 20 17.28

51 21 18.71

51 22 18.71

51 23 18.71

51 24 18.71

51 25+ 18.71

PLUS:  Eligible for $25.00 Safety Bonus per month

Substitute Driver Pay = 15.00

Classified Staff who drive a bus will receive an additional $0.50 per hour.

Revised January 11, 2024 to reflect additional 2% raise
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2025-2026 Calendar Proposal
Gayle Higgs

Director of Support Services
January 11, 2024



Calendar Committee

The committee met virtually on December 5 and December 12.

Board Members Parents / 
Guardians

Teachers & Staff District Admin



School Calendar Legislation
School Calendars must meet the following requirements:
*No new updates since June 30, 2020

● Start date no earlier than the Monday closest to August 26
● Cover at least nine (9) calendar months
● Must have a minimum of 185 days or 1,025 hours of instruction
● Must have at least nine (9) teacher workdays
● Two (2) designated workdays on which teachers may take accumulated vacation leave
● Minimum of ten (10) annual vacation leave days
● Same or equivalent number of holidays as required by the State Personnel 

Commission for State Employees (11 Holidays + July 4)
● End date no later than the Friday closest to June 11
● Must include 215 Teacher/Staff days

https://www.dpi.nc.gov/districts-schools/district-operations/financial-and-business-services/school-calendar-legislation#RequirementsforLEAs-972


Process & Feedback
The calendar committee started with 3 rough drafts with built in state legislation 
requirements. 

Feedback was discussed among the committee and a survey was sent out to collect 
additional feedback from stakeholders. 

Recurring comments within the feedback included: 
● Place the optional teacher workday on August 22
● Preferred to have early release days on Wednesdays
● Keep a workday in October and February
● Staff preferred having a workday coming off of winter beak
● Move the early release day in May to before Spring Break to avoid AP testing
● Preferred the last day and graduation on a Friday



Proposed 
2025-2026 

Asheboro City 
Schools Calendar



Proposed 2025-2026 Calendar Draft
ay Something Anonymous Reporting System

Total Staff Days 215

Holidays 11

Annual Leave 10

Workdays 16

1st Quarter Days 45

2nd Quarter Days 44

3rd Quarter Days 45

4th Quarter Days 44

Semester One Days 89

Semester Two Days 89

Total Student Days 178

Total Hours 1068

Early Release Hours -18

Net Hours 1050

Banked Hours 25



Key Elements of Proposed Calendar
ay Something Anonymous Reporting System● First Day for Staff: August 14

● First Day for Students: August 25
● Early Release Days: 6 Total, including winter break and last day
● Staff PD days noted on calendar
● Winter Break: December 22 - January 2
● Required Workdays in October, January, and February 
● Spring Break: April 3-10
● Last Day for Students and Graduation: Friday, June 5
● Last Day for Staff: June 10, Optional Workday



Questions



Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W
 

 

November 29, 2023 

 

To the Board of Education – Asheboro City Schools 
Asheboro, North Carolina 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Asheboro City Board of Education (the Board) for the year 
ended June 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2023. Professional standards 
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, 
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated January 10, 2023.  
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the 
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and 
their application.  The significant accounting policies used by the Board are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed 
during the year.  We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is 
a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The only 
significant estimates used in the preparation of the basic financial statements are as follows: 

 Management’s estimate of depreciation expense is based on the assets’ respective estimated useful lives.  
We evaluated the methods, assumptions and data used to develop the accumulated depreciation in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 Management’s estimates for the net pension and OPEB liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pension and OPEB plans, and pension and OPEB plan expense 
are based upon guidance provided by independent third parties.  We have evaluated the methods, 
assumptions and data used by the third parties to develop these estimates in determining that they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  Management has 
corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures 
and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated November 29, 2023. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to Asheboro City Board of Education’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant 
to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants.   

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the Asheboro City Board of Education’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 

Other Matters 

Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards 
requires independence for all audits.  The two main principles of independence are: (1) do not perform nonattest 
services that involve making management decisions; and (2) do not audit your own work.  No events have occurred 
to impair our independence during this year’s audit.  We have assisted management in the preparation of the 
Board’s basic financial statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards.  Management 
has reviewed and approved the basic financial statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State 
Awards. 

We applied certain limited procedures to Management Discussion and Analysis, the Schedules of the Board’s 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, OPEB Liabilities (Assets) and the Schedules of Board 
Contributions, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. 
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit 
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the individual fund budgetary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
and State awards, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing 
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
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supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves. 

Restrictions on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of members of the Asheboro City Board of Education 
and management of the Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

We wish to take this opportunity to express our appreciation for the assistance and cooperation given our 
representatives during our audit.  Should you have any questions concerning the matters presented herein, we 
would be pleased to discuss them with you further at your convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

 
 
Anderson Smith & Wike PLLC 
West End, North Carolina 
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Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Asheboro City Board of Education 
Asheboro, North Carolina 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Asheboro City Board of 
Education, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Asheboro City Board of Education’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Asheboro City Board of Education, as of June 30, 
2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General, State Public School and Federal Grants and Other 
Special Revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Asheboro City Board of Education and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Asheboro City Board of 
Education’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Asheboro City Board of Education’s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 
 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about the Asheboro City Board of Education’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 11 and the Schedules of the Board’s Proportionate Share of 
the Net Pension Liability, OPEB Liability and OPEB liability and the Schedules of Board Contributions on 
pages 50 through 55, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Asheboro City Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The accompanying 
individual fund budgetary schedules, other schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal and State 
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the individual fund budgetary schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards are 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 29, 
2023, on our consideration of the Asheboro City Board of Education’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Asheboro City Board of Education’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Asheboro City Board of Education’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

  
November 29, 2023 
West End, North Carolina 
(910) 603-0508  
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This section of the Asheboro City Board of Education’s (the "Board") financial report represents our 
discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Board for the year ended June 30, 2023.  This 
information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements included in this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Board’s total government-wide net position increased by 

$14.2 million.  Governmental activities net position increased by $14.3 million, and business-type 
activities net position decreased by $111,000 or 3.7%. 

 
 The Board’s average daily membership (ADM) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 was 4,378 

students, a decrease of 49 students from the 2022 ADM of 4,427. 
 

 The Board’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $8.1 million at June 30, 2023, a 
decrease of $1.0 million from the amount reported at June 30, 2022. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The audited financial statements of the Asheboro City Board of Education consist of five components. 
They are as follows: 
 
 Independent Auditors' Report 
 
 Management's Discussion and Analysis (required supplementary information) 
 
 Basic Financial Statements 
 
 Required supplemental section that presents the Schedules of the Board’s Proportionate Share of 

Net Pension and OPEB Liabilities (Assets) and the Schedules of Board Contributions. 
 

 Supplementary section that presents individual fund statements and budgetary schedules for 
governmental and enterprise funds. 

 
The Basic Financial Statements include two types of statements that present different views of the 
Board’s finances.  The first is the Government-wide Statements. The government-wide statements are 
presented on the full accrual basis of accounting and include the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities.  The statement of net position includes all of the Board’s assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  Assets and liabilities are classified in the order 
of relative liquidity for assets and due date for liabilities.  This statement provides a summary of the 
Board's investment in assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and 
obligations to creditors.  Liquidity and financial flexibility can be evaluated using the information contained 
in this statement.  The statement of activities summarizes the Board’s revenues and expenses for the 
current year.  A net (expense) revenue format is used to indicate to what extent each function is self-
sufficient.  
 
The second set of statements included in the basic financial statements is the Fund Financial Statements, 
which are presented for the Board’s governmental funds and proprietary funds.  These statements 
present the governmental funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting, measuring the near term 
inflows and outflows of financial resources and what is available at year-end to spend in the next fiscal 
year.  The proprietary funds are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting.  
 
The fund financial statements focus on the Board’s most significant funds.   Because a different basis of 
accounting is used in the government-wide statements, reconciliation from the governmental fund 
financial statements to the government-wide statements is required.  The government-wide statements 
provide information about the Board as an economic unit while the fund financial statements provide 
information on each of the financial resources of each of the Board’s major funds. 
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Government-wide Statements 
 
The government-wide statements report information about the unit as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies.  The statement of net position includes all of the 
Board’s assets and liabilities.  All the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the 
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.   
 
The two government-wide statements report the Board’s net position and how it has changed.  Net 
position is the difference between the Board’s assets and liabilities. This is one way to measure the unit’s 
financial health or position. 
 

 Over time, increases or decreases in the Board’s net position are an indicator of whether its 
financial position is improving or deteriorating.   

 
 To assess the Board’s overall health, you need to consider additional non-financial factors such 

as changes in the County’s and City’s property tax bases and the condition of its school buildings 
and other physical assets. 

 
The unit’s activities are divided into two categories in the government-wide statements:   
 

 Governmental activities:  Most of the Board’s basic services are included here, such as regular 
and special education, transportation, and administration.  County and city funding along with 
state and federal aid finance most of these activities. 

 
 Business-type activities:  The Board charges fees to help it cover the costs of certain services it 

provides.  School food service and child care services are included here.   
 
The government-wide statements are shown as Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Board’s funds, focusing on its 
most significant or “major” funds - not the unit as a whole.  Funds are accounting devices the Board uses 
to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs.   
 

 Some funds are required by State law, such as the State Public School Fund. 
 

 The Board has established other funds to control and manage money for a particular purpose or 
to show that it is properly using certain revenues, such as in the Federal Grants Fund.  

 
Asheboro City Board of Education has two types of funds: 
 
Governmental funds:  Most of the Board’s basic services are included in the governmental funds, which 
generally focus on two things – 1) how cash and other assets that can readily be converted to cash flow 
in and out, and 2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. As a result of this focus, 
the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the coming year to finance the 
Board’s programs.  Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the 
government-wide statements, additional information at the bottom of the governmental fund statements, 
in the form of a reconciliation, explains the relationship (or differences) between the government-wide and 
the fund financial statements.  The Board has several governmental funds:  the General Fund, the State 
Public School Fund, the Federal Grants Fund, the Other Special Revenue Fund, the Capital Outlay Fund 
and the Individual Schools Fund. 
 
The governmental fund statements are shown as Exhibits 3, 4, 5 and 6 of this report. 
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Proprietary funds:  Services for which the Board charges a fee are generally reported in the proprietary 
funds.  The proprietary fund statements are reported on the same full accrual basis of accounting as the 
government-wide statements.  The Asheboro City Board of Education has two proprietary funds - both 
enterprise funds – the School Food Service Fund and the Child Care Fund.  
 
The proprietary fund statements are shown as Exhibits 7, 8, and 9 of this report. 
 
Financial Analysis of the Board as a Whole 
 
Net position is an indicator of the fiscal health of the Board. Assets and deferred outflows exceeded 
Liabilities and deferred inflows by $23.9 million as of June 30, 2023 as compared to assets and deferred 
outflows exceeding liabilities and deferred inflows by $9.7 million as of June 30, 2022, an increase of 
$14.2 million. The largest component of net position is net investment in capital assets of $80.1 million.  
Following is a summary of the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2023 and 2022: 
 

6/30/23 6/30/22 6/30/23 6/30/22 6/30/23 6/30/22

Current and other assets 9,466,460$      10,899,360$    2,957,674$       3,102,249$       12,424,134$    14,001,609$    

Capital assets 79,862,663      72,330,403      254,236            245,691            80,116,899      72,576,094      

Total assets 89,329,123      83,229,763      3,211,910         3,347,940         92,541,033      86,577,703      

Deferred outf low s

of resources 21,507,323      14,809,091      73,374              47,541              21,580,697      14,856,632      

Current liabilities 2,673,160        2,664,782        69,312              86,734              2,742,472        2,751,516        

Long-term liabilities 64,781,042      58,471,920      224,318            185,356            65,005,360      58,657,276      

Total liabilities 67,454,202      61,136,702      293,630            272,090            67,747,832      61,408,792      

Deferred inflow s

of resources 22,415,668      30,237,367      76,472              97,070              22,492,140      30,334,437      

Net investment in

  capital assets 79,862,663      72,330,403      254,236            245,691            80,116,899      72,576,094      

Restricted net position 3,727,550        3,664,281        -                        374                   3,727,550        3,664,655        

Unrestricted net position (deficit) (62,623,637)     (69,329,899)     2,660,946         2,780,256         (59,962,691)     (66,549,643)     

Total net position 20,966,576$    6,664,785$      2,915,182$       3,026,321$       23,881,758$    9,691,106$      

Table 1

Condensed Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022

Governmental Acitivities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

                                      
                             

7 
 
 

The net position of the Board’s governmental activities increased $14.3 million during the year, from $6.7 
million at June 30, 2022 to $21.0 million at June 30, 2023. Restricted net position increased by $63,000, 
primarily due to encumbrances in the General fund.  Unrestricted net position increased $6.7 million 
compared to the prior year, due primarily to continued lower pension and OPEB expenses and an 
increase in revenues in the State and Federal funds as a result of the $4.1 million of COVID-19 Education 
Stabilization funds received.  Net investment in capital assets increased $7.5 million due to an excess of 
capital additions over depreciation for the year as a result of renovations completed to the High School.  
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relate entirely to the pension and OPEB plans which the 
Board participates in. The Board is required to record its proportionate share of these items along with its 
proportionate share of the plan liabilities.  See Note 2 of the financial statements for more details 
regarding these plans.    
   
The net position of the Board’s business-type activities decreased $111,000 from $3.0 million at June 30, 
2022 to $2.9 million at June 30, 2023. This decrease is the net loss generated by our school food service 
fund and the child care operations during the 2023 fiscal year.  The following table shows the revenues 
and expenses for the Board for the current and prior fiscal years: 
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6/30/23 6/30/22 6/30/23 6/30/22 6/30/23 6/30/22

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services 1,499,237$       1,173,128$       456,002$        178,659$        1,955,239$       1,351,787$       

Operating grants and 

  contributions 41,119,802       42,470,475       2,978,084       3,629,696       44,097,886       46,100,171       

General revenues:

County and City appropriations 20,521,234       26,418,644       -                      -                      20,521,234       26,418,644       

State appropriations 2,178,110         2,172,728         -                      -                      2,178,110         2,172,728         

Other revenues 591,162            420,408            20,708            487                 611,870            420,895            

Total revenues 65,909,545       72,655,383       3,454,794       3,808,842       69,364,339       76,464,225       

Expenses:

Governmental activities:

Instructional services 40,532,509       39,783,022       -                      -                      40,532,509       39,783,022       

System-wide support

  services 10,218,094       8,816,625         -                      -                      10,218,094       8,816,625         

Ancillary services 6,453                182,621            -                      -                      6,453                182,621            

Non-programmed

  charges 685,682            590,663            -                      -                      685,682            590,663            

Unallocated depreciation 120,016            141,183            -                      -                      120,016            141,183            

Business-type activities:

School food service -                       -                       3,397,155       2,976,105       3,397,155         2,976,105         

Child care -                       -                       213,778          146,107          213,778            146,107            

Total expenses 51,562,754       49,514,114       3,610,933       3,122,212       55,173,687       52,636,326       

Transfers in (out) (45,000)             (45,000)             45,000            45,000            -                       -                       

Increase (decrease)

  in net position 14,301,791       23,096,269       (111,139)         731,630          14,190,652       23,827,899       

Beginning net position (deficit) 6,664,785         (16,431,484)      3,026,321       2,294,691       9,691,106         (14,136,793)      

Ending net position 20,966,576$     6,664,785$       2,915,182$     3,026,321$     23,881,758$     9,691,106$       

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

Table 2
Condensed Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

 
For the year ended June 30, 2023, total governmental activities generated revenues of $65.9 million, 
expenses of $51.6 million and transfers out of $45,000 resulting in an increase in net position of $14.3 
million. Comparatively, revenues were $72.7 million, expenses totaled $49.5 million and transfers out 
were $45,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022, resulting in an increase in net position of $23.1 million.  
The decrease in revenues is a result of decreases in the Federal Grants fund related to COVID-19 
Education Stabilization funds received as well as in Capital funds received from the County to fund 
construction.  The increase in expenses is due to the increase in pension and OPEB related expenses of 
$888,000.     
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The Board’s primary sources of revenues were funding from the State of North Carolina, Randolph 
County, and the United States Government, which respectively comprised 53.2%, 25.4% and 11.1% of 
our total revenues.  As would be expected, the major component of our expenditures was instructional 
services which accounted for 78.6% of our total expenditures during the most recent fiscal year.  Of the 
remaining 21.4% of our total expenditures, 19.8% was attributable to system-wide support services.   
 
Our business-type activities generated revenues of $3.5 million, while expenses in this category totaled 
$3.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2023.  For the year, net position decreased by $111,000 
(including transfers in of $45,000). Comparatively, revenues and expenses were $3.8 million and $3.1 
million respectively with transfers in of $45,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022, resulting in an increase 
in net position of $732,000.       
 
Financial Analysis of the Board’s Funds 

 
Governmental Funds:  The focus of Asheboro City Board of Education’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such information is useful 
in assessing the Board’s financing requirements.  
 
The Board’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $8.1 million at June 30, 2023, a 
decrease of $1.0 million from the amount reported at June 30, 2022.  The Board’s General, Other Special 
Revenue and Capital Outlay funds all reported expenditures over revenues for the year ended June 30, 
2023 of $352,000, $647,000, and $36,000, respectively.   The Board’s Individual School fund reported 
revenues over expenditures of $600.  Overall, total governmental fund revenues decreased by $7.0 
million or 9.5%, from the prior year, while total expenditures decreased by $3.6 million, or 5.0%, the 
change from the previous year is primarily due to decreased Capital Outlay related to County funded 
capital renovations at the High School and a decrease in Federal funds related to the COVID-19 
pandemic.   
 
The following chart summarizes governmental fund expenditures: 

Categorization of Expenditures for Governmental Funds

2%16%

15%

67%

Instructional
Services

System-wide
Support

Capital Outlay

Other

 
Expenditures presented on modified accrual basis of accounting. 

 
Proprietary Funds: The Board’s business-type funds, the School Food Service Fund and the Child Care 
Fund, reported a combined decrease in net position of $111,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, 
compared to an increase of $732,000 for the same 2022 period. Net loss in the School Food Service 
Fund (including transfers in) was $103,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, compared to a net 
income of $719,000 for 2022, a decline of $822,000 resulting from a decrease in revenues due to lower 
federal reimbursement rates to the Board due to the end of the COVID-19 feeding program as well as an 
increase in both food costs due to inflation and salaries and benefits as minimum wages paid by the 
contractor that staffs the program increased.  The Child Care Fund reported a net loss of $8,000 in 2023 
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compared to a net income of $13,000 in 2022, a decline of $21,000, due higher salaries and benefits and 
contracted services.      
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Over the course of the year, the Board revised the budget several times to account for changes in 
revenue expectations and program allocations.  Since several revenue sources are either unknown or 
uncertain at the beginning of the fiscal year when the original budget is adopted, budget revisions are 
necessary throughout the year to recognize these adjustments.   
 
Capital Assets 
 
Total primary government capital assets were $80.1 million at June 30, 2023 compared to $72.6 million at 
June 30, 2022, an increase of $7.5 million due to an excess of capital additions over depreciation 
expense for the year.  More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is contained in the notes 
to the basic financial statements.  The following is a summary of the Board’s capital assets, net of 
depreciation, at June 30, 2023 and 2022.   
 

6/30/23 6/30/22 6/30/23 6/30/22 6/30/23 6/30/22

Land 3,038,935$        3,038,935$        -$                       -$                       3,038,935$        3,038,935$        
Construction in progress 484,255             18,334,203        -                         -                         484,255             18,334,203        
Buildings and

improvements 75,621,117        50,594,759        -                         -                         75,621,117        50,594,759        
Equipment and furniture 458,734             308,859             254,236             245,691             712,970             554,550             
Vehicles 259,622             53,647               -                         -                         259,622             53,647               

Total 79,862,663$      72,330,403$      254,236$           245,691$           80,116,899$      72,576,094$      

Table 3
Summary of Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022

Governmental Acitivities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

 
Economic Factors 
 
County and Supplemental Tax funding are a major source of income for the Board; therefore, the local 
area’s economic outlook directly affects that of the Board’s. Asheboro and Randolph County continue to 
feel the effects of the pandemic.  Our unemployment rate was 3.7% at June 30, 2023 while the State and 
national rates were 3.6% and 3.8%, respectively.     
 
Our local school district’s supplemental tax provides approximately 29.7% of our funding for local 
budgets. These funds are critical for the effective operation of the school district.  The Board has 
maintained a healthy fund balance over the years, but the long-term financial impact of the Coronavirus 
pandemic remains unknown, the district will continue to face some challenging funding decisions in the 
future. 
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Requests for Information 
 
This report is intended to provide a summary of the financial condition of Asheboro City Board of 
Education.  Questions or requests for additional information should be addressed to: 
 

Sandra Annette Spivey, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer 

Asheboro City Board of Education 
1126 S. Park St. 

Asheboro, NC 27203 
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 1

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,473,847$      2,784,659$     11,258,506$    
Due from other governments 853,447           105,127          958,574           
Receivables 128,989           7,132              136,121           
Internal balances 10,177             (10,177)           -                       
Inventories -                       70,933            70,933             
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 3,523,190        -                      3,523,190        
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 76,339,473      254,236          76,593,709      

Total capital assets 79,862,663      254,236          80,116,899      

Total assets 89,329,123      3,211,910       92,541,033      

Deferred Outflows of Resources 21,507,323      73,374            21,580,697      

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,325,733        47,788            1,373,521        
Unearned revenue -                       16,921            16,921             
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 1,347,427        4,603              1,352,030        
Due in more than one year 1,377,991        8,012              1,386,003        
Net pension liability 26,270,192      89,623            26,359,815      
Net OPEB liability 37,132,859      126,683          37,259,542      

Total liabilities 67,454,202      293,630          67,747,832      

Deferred Inflows of Resources 22,415,668      76,472            22,492,140      

Net position
Investment in capital assets 79,862,663      254,236          80,116,899      
Restricted for:

Stabilization by State statute 711,748           -                      711,748           
School capital outlay 2,416,138        -                      2,416,138        
Programs 245,140           -                      245,140           
Individual schools activities 275,234           -                      275,234           
DIPNC OPEB plan 79,290             -                      79,290             

Unrestricted (deficit) (62,623,637)     2,660,946       (59,962,691)     

Total net position 20,966,576$    2,915,182$     23,881,758$    

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2023

Primary Government
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 2
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services
Operating Grants 
and Contributions

Capital Grants 
and Contributions

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

Instructional services:
            Regular instructional 24,246,743$      -$                       23,104,749$      -$                       (1,141,994)$       -$                       (1,141,994)$       
            Special populations 6,297,527          -                         7,036,313          -                         738,786             -                         738,786             
            Alternative programs 3,155,749          -                         2,557,499          -                         (598,250)            -                         (598,250)            
            School leadership 2,725,192          -                         2,124,780          -                         (600,412)            -                         (600,412)            
            Co-curricular 1,134,254          880,558             -                         -                         (253,696)            -                         (253,696)            
            School-based support 2,973,044          -                         2,769,572          -                         (203,472)            -                         (203,472)            

System-wide support services:
            Support and development 309,748             -                         236,224             -                         (73,524)              -                         (73,524)              
            Special population support and development 177,510             -                         2,541                 -                         (174,969)            -                         (174,969)            
            Alternative programs and services 
               support and development 102,083             -                         109,909             -                         7,826                 -                         7,826                 
            Technology support 958,427             -                         163,861             -                         (794,566)            -                         (794,566)            
            Operational support 6,604,448          -                         1,832,081          -                         (4,772,367)         -                         (4,772,367)         
            Financial and human resource services 846,592             618,679             320,669             -                         92,756               -                         92,756               
            Accountability 71,325               -                         1,584                 -                         (69,741)              -                         (69,741)              
           System-wide pupil support 121,343             -                         55,361               -                         (65,982)              -                         (65,982)              
            Policy, leadership and public relations 1,026,618          -                         331,118             -                         (695,500)            -                         (695,500)            

Ancillary services 6,453                 -                         8,706                 -                         2,253                 -                         2,253                 
Non-programmed charges 685,682             -                         464,835             -                         (220,847)            -                         (220,847)            
Unallocated depreciation expense** 120,016             -                         -                         -                         (120,016)            -                         (120,016)            

Total governmental activities 51,562,754        1,499,237          41,119,802        -                         (8,943,715)         -                         (8,943,715)         

Business-type activities:
School food service 3,397,155          250,240             2,978,084          -                         -                         (168,831)            (168,831)            
Child care 213,778             205,762             -                         -                         -                         (8,016)                (8,016)                

Total business-type activities 3,610,933          456,002             2,978,084          -                         -                         (176,847)            (176,847)            

Total primary government 55,173,687$      1,955,239$        44,097,886$      -$                       (8,943,715)         (176,847)            (9,120,562)         

General revenues:
Unrestricted county and city appropriations - operating 10,026,449        -                         10,026,449        
Unrestricted county and city appropriations - capital  10,494,785        -                         10,494,785        
Unrestricted State appropriations - operating 2,178,110          -                         2,178,110          
Investment earnings, unrestricted 52,913               18,854               71,767               
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 538,249             1,854                 540,103             

Transfers (45,000)              45,000               -                         

Total general revenues 23,245,506        65,708               23,311,214        

Change in net position 14,301,791        (111,139)            14,190,652        

Net position - beginning 6,664,785          3,026,321          9,691,106          

Net position - ending 20,966,576$      2,915,182$        23,881,758$      

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government
Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

**This amount excludes the depreciation that is included in the direct 
expenses of the various programs.
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 3

Major Funds Non-major Fund

General
State Public 

School
Federal 
Grants

Other Special 
Revenue Capital Outlay

Individual 
Schools

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5,453,823$    -$                  -$                  373,021$       2,371,769$   275,234$      8,473,847$      
Due from other governments 64,840           -                    -                    308,257         480,350        -                    853,447           
Accounts receivable 9,481             -                    -                    17,508           102,000        -                    128,989           
Due from other funds 566                -                    -                    16,064           -                    -                    16,630             

Total assets 5,528,710$    -$                  -$                  714,850$       2,954,119$   275,234$      9,472,913$      

Liabilities and Fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities 785,419$       -$                  -$                  2,333$           537,981$      -$                  1,325,733$      

Due to other funds 6,453             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    6,453               

Total liabilities 791,872         -                    -                    2,333             537,981        -                    1,332,186        

Fund balances:
Restricted:

Stabilization by State statute 369,919         -                    -                    341,829         -                    -                    711,748           
    School capital outlay -                    -                    -                    -                    2,416,138     -                    2,416,138        
    Programs -                    -                    -                    245,140         -                    -                    245,140           
    Individual schools -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    275,234        275,234           
Assigned:
     Subsequent year's expenditures 704,968         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    704,968           
     Special revenues -                    -                    -                    125,548         -                    -                    125,548           
Unassigned 3,661,951      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,661,951        

Total fund balances 4,736,838      -                    -                    712,517         2,416,138     275,234        8,140,727        

Total liabilities and fund
balances 5,528,710$    -$                  -$                  714,850$       2,954,119$   275,234$      9,472,913$      

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 3 (continued)

Total fund balance (All Governmental Funds) 8,140,727$      

79,862,663      

15,712,739      

5,794,584        

(2,725,418)       

(26,270,192)     

(37,132,859)     

(1,422,491)       

(20,993,177)     

Net position of governmental activities 20,966,576$    

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Net OPEB liability

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB

Net pension liability

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

Some liabilities, including those for compensated absences, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are
different because of the following:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds.

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2023



ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 4

Major Funds Non-major Fund

General
State Public 

School Federal Grants
Other Special 

Revenue Capital Outlay
Individual 
Schools

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Revenues:

State of North Carolina -$                     35,148,756$     -$                     158,500$          -$                     -$                     35,307,256$     
Randolph County

Local current expense 6,390,613         -                       -                       -                       -                       6,390,613         
Other -                       -                       -                       -                       10,494,785       -                       10,494,785       

U.S. Government -                       -                       7,319,083         61,846              -                       -                       7,380,929         
Other 3,977,157         -                       -                       1,822,344         171,934            880,558            6,851,993         

Total revenues 10,367,770       35,148,756       7,319,083         2,042,690         10,666,719       880,558            66,425,576       

Expenditures:
Current:

Instructional services:
Regular instructional 2,846,459         20,133,730       3,064,241         187,092            -                       -                       26,231,522       
Special populations 698,689            5,247,109         1,180,785         390,916            -                       -                       7,517,499         
Alternative programs 436,627            632,588            1,940,777         707,312            -                       -                       3,717,304         
School leadership 536,517            2,769,934         29,466              -                       -                       -                       3,335,917         
Co-curricular 282,546            -                       -                       -                       -                       879,952            1,162,498         
School-based support 253,708            2,596,252         316,972            321,895            -                       -                       3,488,827         

System-wide support services:
Support and development 89,200              290,593            -                       -                       -                       -                       379,793            
Special population support and development 131,537            -                       2,541                80,990              -                       -                       215,068            
Alternative programs and services 
support and development 15,147              109,909            -                       -                       -                       -                       125,056            
Technology support 572,727            373,301            70,173              36,045              -                       -                       1,052,246         
Operational support 3,134,996         1,537,788         249,293            965,279            -                       -                       5,887,356         
Financial and human resource services 296,539            728,108            -                       -                       -                       -                       1,024,647         
Accountability 35,022              76,775              -                       -                       -                       -                       111,797            
System-wide pupil support 40,507              105,391            -                       -                       -                       -                       145,898            
Policy, leadership and public relations 657,756            502,278            -                       -                       -                       -                       1,160,034         

Ancillary services 6,453                -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       6,453                
Non-programmed charges 685,682            -                       464,835            -                       -                       -                       1,150,517         

Capital outlay -                       -                       -                       -                       10,702,271       -                       10,702,271       

  Total expenditures 10,720,112       35,103,756       7,319,083         2,689,529         10,702,271       879,952            67,414,703       

(352,342)          45,000              -                       (646,839)          (35,552)            606                   (989,127)          
Other financing sources (uses):

-                       (45,000)            -                       -                       -                       -                       (45,000)            

(352,342)          -                       -                       (646,839)          (35,552)            606                   (1,034,127)       

5,089,180         -                       -                       1,359,356         2,451,690         274,628            9,174,854         

4,736,838$       -$                     -$                     712,517$          2,416,138$       275,234$          8,140,727$       

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net change in fund balance
Fund balances:

Beginning of year

End of year

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Transfers from (to) other funds



ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 5

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (1,034,127)$      

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period. 7,532,260         

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included on the Statement
of Activities 4,897,555         

Contributions to the OPEB plans in the current fiscal year are not included on the Statement of
Activities 2,005,501         

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds.
   Supplemental taxes (51,196)             

OPEB nonemployer contributions 281,906            

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Net OPEB (expense) benefit 5,195,167         
Pension (expense) benefit (4,883,617)        
Compensated absences 358,342            

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 14,301,791$     

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
  IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 6

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Original Final Variance With
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
State of North Carolina -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Randolph County 6,387,719        6,387,719        6,390,613        2,894               
U.S. Government -                       -                       -                       -                       
Other 3,800,500        3,800,500        3,977,157        176,657           

Total revenues 10,188,219      10,188,219      10,367,770      179,551           

Expenditures:
Current:

Instructional services
Regular instructional 2,488,804        2,948,088        2,846,459        101,629           
Special populations 770,000           701,730           698,689           3,041               
Alternative programs 335,000           442,579           436,627           5,952               
School leadership 559,300           536,517           536,517           -                       
Co-curricular 225,000           282,546           282,546           -                       
School-based support 700,000           267,000           253,708           13,292             

Instructional services 5,078,104        5,178,460        5,054,546        123,914           

System-wide support services
Support and development 120,000           89,200             89,200             -                       
Special population support and development 140,000           131,537           131,537           -                       
Alternative programs and services 24,760             24,760             15,147             9,613               
Technology support 187,240           572,727           572,727           -                       
Operational support 2,552,115        3,173,389        3,134,996        38,393             
Financial and human resource services 850,000           301,923           296,539           5,384               
Accountability 195,000           40,131             35,022             5,109               
System-wide pupil support services 150,000           40,828             40,507             321                  
Policy, leadership and public relations 980,000           688,582           657,756           30,826             

System-wide support services 5,199,115        5,063,077        4,973,431        89,646             

Ancillary services
Community -                       -                       -                       -                       
Nutrition 11,000             11,000             6,453               4,547               

Ancillary services 11,000             11,000             6,453               4,547               

Nonprogrammed charges 650,000           685,682           685,682           -                       

Total expenditures 10,938,219      10,938,219      10,720,112      218,107           

Revenues over (under) expenditures (750,000)          (750,000)          (352,342)          397,658           
Other financing uses:

Transfers to other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       
Fund balance appropriated 750,000           750,000           -                       (750,000)          

Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     (352,342)          (352,342)$        

Fund balances:
Beginning of year  5,089,180        

End of year   4,736,838$      

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

General Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 6 (continued)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Original Final Variance With
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
State of North Carolina 36,377,732$    36,784,648$    35,148,756$    (1,635,892)$     
Randolph County -                       -                       -                       -                       
U.S. Government -                       -                       -                       -                       
Other -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total revenues 36,377,732      36,784,648      35,148,756      (1,635,892)       

Expenditures:
Current:

Instructional services
Regular instructional 20,437,758      20,497,633      20,133,730      363,903           
Special populations 5,209,318        5,420,148        5,247,109        173,039           
Alternative programs 627,087           677,992           632,588           45,404             
School leadership 3,241,368        3,251,403        2,769,934        481,469           
Co-curricular -                       -                       -                       -                       
School-based support 2,653,513        2,797,786        2,596,252        201,534           

Instructional services 32,169,044      32,644,962      31,379,613      1,265,349        

System-wide support services
Support and development 355,094           361,165           290,593           70,572             
Special population support and development 5,550               5,550               -                       5,550               
Alternative programs and services 105,221           110,953           109,909           1,044               
Technology support 368,162           426,277           373,301           52,976             
Operational support 2,029,512        1,719,066        1,537,788        181,278           
Financial and human resource services 547,550           734,561           728,108           6,453               
Accountability 70,400             77,091             76,775             316                  
System-wide pupil support services 220,348           133,975           105,391           28,584             
Policy, leadership and public relations 461,851           526,048           502,278           23,770             

System-wide support services 4,163,688        4,094,686        3,724,143        370,543           

Ancillary services
Community -                       -                       -                       -                       
Nutrition -                       -                       -                       -                       

Ancillary services -                       -                       -                       -                       

Nonprogrammed charges -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total expenditures 36,332,732      36,739,648      35,103,756      1,635,892        

Revenues over (under) expenditures 45,000             45,000             45,000             -                       
Other financing uses:

Transfers to other funds (45,000)            (45,000)            (45,000)            -                       
Fund balance appropriated -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     -                       -$                     

Fund balances:
Beginning of year -                       

End of year -$                     

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

State Public School Fund
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 6 (continued)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Original Final Variance With
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
State of North Carolina -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Randolph County -                       -                       -                       -                       
U.S. Government 12,847,231      13,026,042      7,319,083        (5,706,959)       
Other -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total revenues 12,847,231      13,026,042      7,319,083        (5,706,959)       

Expenditures:
Current:

Instructional services
Regular instructional 6,756,781        5,732,484        3,064,241        2,668,243        
Special populations 1,520,462        1,484,207        1,180,785        303,422           
Alternative programs 2,951,542        2,546,951        1,940,777        606,174           
School leadership 140,874           47,016             29,466             17,550             
Co-curricular -                       -                       -                       -                       
School-based support 662,372           562,620           316,972           245,648           

Instructional services 12,032,031      10,373,278      6,532,241        3,841,037        

System-wide support services
Support and development 94,449             95,938             -                       95,938             
Special population support and development 8,228               13,965             2,541               11,424             
Alternative programs and services -                       -                       -                       -                       
Technology support 49,849             112,526           70,173             42,353             
Operational support 313,016           333,395           249,293           84,102             
Financial and human resource services -                       -                       -                       -                       
Accountability -                       -                       -                       -                       
System-wide pupil support services -                       -                       -                       -                       
Policy, leadership and public relations -                       -                       -                       -                       

System-wide support services 465,542           555,824           322,007           233,817           

Ancillary services
Community -                       -                       -                       -                       
Nutrition -                       -                       -                       -                       

Ancillary services -                       -                       -                       -                       

Nonprogrammed charges 349,658           2,096,940        464,835           1,632,105        

Total expenditures 12,847,231      13,026,042      7,319,083        5,706,959        

Revenues over (under) expenditures -                       -                       -                       -                       
Other financing uses:

Transfers to other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       
Fund balance appropriated -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     -                       -$                     

Fund balances:
Beginning of year  -                       

End of year   -$                     

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS                                                                 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Grants Fund
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 6 (continued)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Original Final Variance With
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
State of North Carolina 158,500$         158,500$         158,500$         -$                     
Randolph County -                       -                       -                       -                       
U.S. Government 52,000             52,000             61,846             9,846               
Other 1,494,780        1,494,780        1,822,344        327,564           

Total revenues 1,705,280        1,705,280        2,042,690        337,410           

Expenditures:
Current:

Instructional services
Regular instructional 84,000             198,259           187,092           11,167             
Special populations 72,000             408,857           390,916           17,941             
Alternative programs 637,780           707,727           707,312           415                  
School leadership -                       -                       -                       -                       
Co-curricular -                       -                       -                       -                       
School-based support 361,000           661,110           321,895           339,215           

Instructional services 1,154,780        1,975,953        1,607,215        368,738           

System-wide support services
Support and development -                       -                       -                       -                       
Special population support and development 48,000             87,359             80,990             6,369               
Alternative programs and services -                       -                       -                       -                       
Technology support -                       36,045             36,045             -                       
Operational support 502,500           965,279           965,279           -                       
Financial and human resource services -                       -                       -                       -                       
Accountability -                       -                       -                       -                       
System-wide pupil support services -                       -                       -                       -                       
Policy, leadership and public relations -                       -                       -                       -                       

System-wide support services 550,500           1,088,683        1,082,314        6,369               

Ancillary services
Community -                       -                       -                       -                       
Nutrition -                       -                       -                       -                       

Ancillary services -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       

Nonprogrammed charges -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total expenditures 1,705,280        3,064,636        2,689,529        375,107           

Revenues over (under) expenditures -                       (1,359,356)       (646,839)          712,517           
Other financing uses:

Transfers to other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       
Fund balance appropriated -                       1,359,356        -                       (1,359,356)       

Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     (646,839)          (646,839)$        

Fund balances:
Beginning of year  1,359,356        

End of year   712,517$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS                                                                 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Other Special Revenue Fund
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 7
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

School Food Child
Service Care Totals

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,651,124$      133,535$         2,784,659$      
Due from other governments 105,127           -                       105,127           
Receivables -                       7,132               7,132               
Due from other funds 6,453               -                       6,453               
Inventories 70,933             -                       70,933             

Total current assets 2,833,637        140,667           2,974,304        

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Furniture, equipment and vehicles, net 254,236           -                       254,236           
Total noncurrent assets 254,236           -                       254,236           

Total assets 3,087,873        140,667           3,228,540        

Deferred Outflows of Resources 73,374             -                       73,374             

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 47,788             -                       47,788             
Due to other funds 16,630             -                       16,630             
Compensated absences 562                  4,041               4,603               
Unearned revenue 16,921             -                       16,921             

Total current liabilities 81,901             4,041               85,942             

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 89,623             -                       89,623             
Net OPEB liability 126,683           -                       126,683           
Compensated absences 7,331               681                  8,012               

Total noncurrent liabilities 223,637           681                  224,318           

Total liabilities 305,538           4,722               310,260           

Deferred Inflows of Resources 76,472             -                       76,472             

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 254,236           -                       254,236           
Unrestricted 2,525,001        135,945           2,660,946        

Total net position 2,779,237$      135,945$         2,915,182$      

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

 Enterprise 

June 30, 2023

Major Funds
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 8

                                                                                                           

School Food Child
Service Care Totals

Operating revenues: 
Food sales 250,240$         -$                     250,240$         
Child care fees -                       205,762           205,762           

Total operating revenues 250,240           205,762           456,002           

Operating expenses:
Food cost:

Purchase of food 1,275,559        18,703             1,294,262        
Donated commodities 206,080           -                       206,080           

Salaries and benefits 1,308,254        128,765           1,437,019        
Indirect costs 106,779           -                       106,779           
Materials and supplies 17,630             14,502             32,132             
Depreciation 35,210             -                       35,210             
Non-capitalized equipment 225,569           -                       225,569           
Contracted services 202,947           51,808             254,755           
Other 19,127             -                       19,127             

Total operating expenses 3,397,155        213,778           3,610,933        

Operating loss (3,146,915)       (8,016)              (3,154,931)       

Nonoperating revenues:
Federal reimbursements 2,679,039        -                       2,679,039        
Federal commodities 206,080           -                       206,080           
State reimbursements 92,965             -                       92,965             
Interest earned 18,854             -                       18,854             
Other 1,854               -                       1,854               

Total nonoperating revenues 2,998,792        -                       2,998,792        

Loss before transfers (148,123)          (8,016)              (156,139)          

Transfers from other funds 45,000             -                       45,000             

Change in net position (103,123)          (8,016)              (111,139)          

Net position, beginning of year 2,882,360        143,961           3,026,321        

Net position, end of year 2,779,237$      135,945$         2,915,182$      

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

 Enterprise 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

Major Fund
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 9
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Major Fund Non-major Fund
School Food Child

Service Care  Totals

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers 240,956$       198,630$       439,586$       
Cash paid for goods and services (1,835,637)     (85,054)          (1,920,691)     
Cash paid to employees for services (1,267,817)     (134,252)        (1,402,069)     
Net cash used by operating activities (2,862,498)     (20,676)          (2,883,174)     

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Due to other funds 16,630           -                     16,630           
Due from other funds (4,599)            -                     (4,599)            
Federal and State reimbursements 2,796,765      -                     2,796,765      
Other 1,854             -                     1,854             
Net cash provided by noncapital activities 2,810,650      -                     2,810,650      

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Purchase of capital assets (43,755)          -                     (43,755)          

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest earned on investments 18,854           -                     18,854           

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (76,749)          (20,676)          (97,425)          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,727,873      154,211         2,882,084      

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,651,124$    133,535$       2,784,659$    

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) (3,146,915)$   (8,016)$          (3,154,931)$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to  
net cash used by operating activities: 
Depreciation 35,210           -                     35,210           
Donated commodities 206,080         -                     206,080         
Salaries paid by special revenue fund 45,000           -                     45,000           
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Increase in accounts receivable -                     (7,132)            (7,132)            
Decrease in OPEB asset 82                  -                     82                  
Decrease in inventories 17,408           -                     17,408           
Decrease in accounts payable and

accrued liabilities (5,434)            (41)                 (5,475)            

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   Exhibit 9 (continued)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Major Fund Non-major Fund
School Food Child

Service Care  Totals

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities (continued): 

Decrease in unearned revenue (9,284)            -                     (9,284)            
Increase in pension liability 63,051           -                     63,051           
Decrease in OPEB liability (27,821)          -                     (27,821)          
Increase in deferred outflow (25,833)          -                     (25,833)          
Decrease in deferred inflow (20,598)          -                     (20,598)          
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 6,556             (5,487)            1,069             

Total adjustments 284,417         (12,660)          271,757         

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (2,862,498)$   (20,676)$        (2,883,174)$   

NONCASH OPERATING AND NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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 Enterprise 

The School Food Service Fund received donated commodities with a value of $206,080 during the fiscal year.
The receipt of these commodities is reflected as a nonoperating revenue on Exhibit 8. The consumption of
these commodities is recorded as an operating expense.

The State Public School Fund paid salaries and benefits of $45,000 to personnel of the School Food Service
Fund during the fiscal year.  The payment is reflected as a transfer in and an operating expense on Exhibit 8.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of Asheboro City Board of Education conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governments.  The following is a summary of the more significant accounting 
policies: 
 
A.  Reporting Entity 
 
The Asheboro City Board of Education (Board) is a Local Education Agency empowered by State law 
[Chapter 115C of the North Carolina General Statutes] with the responsibility to oversee and control all 
activities related to public school education in Asheboro, North Carolina.  The Board receives State, local, 
and federal government funding and must adhere to the legal requirements of each funding entity.  The 
Board has no component units. 
 
B.  Basis of Presentation 

 
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the Board.  These statements include the financial activities of the overall government.  
Eliminations have been made to minimize the effect of internal activities upon revenues and expenses.  
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Board.  
Governmental activities generally are financed through intergovernmental revenues and other non-
exchange transactions.  Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to 
external parties. 
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the Board and for each function of the Board’s governmental 
activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Indirect expense allocations that have been 
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities.  Program revenues include (a) fees 
and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Board’s funds.  
Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary – are presented.  The 
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a 
separate column.  All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as 
nonmajor funds.   
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values.  Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.  All expenses are 
considered to be operating expenses. 
 
The Board reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Board.  The General Fund accounts 
for all financial resources except those that are accounted for in another fund. 
 
State Public School Fund. The State Public School Fund includes appropriations from the Department of 
Public Instruction for the current operating expenditures of the public school system. 
 
Federal Grants Fund. The Federal Grants Fund includes appropriations from the U.S. Government for the 
current operating expenditures of the public school system. 
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Other Special Revenue Fund. The Other Special Revenue Fund is used to account for revenues from 
reimbursements, including indirect costs, fees for actual costs, tuition, sales tax refunds, gifts and grants 
restricted as to use, federal and State grants restricted as to use, federal and State appropriations made 
directly to local school administrative units, funds received for prekindergarten programs and special 
programs.    
 
Capital Outlay Fund. The Capital Outlay Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and 
trust funds).  It is mandated by State law [G.S.115C-426].  Capital projects are funded by Randolph 
County appropriations, restricted sales tax moneys, proceeds of county debt issued for public school 
construction, lottery proceeds as well as certain State assistance. 
 
The Board reports the following nonmajor governmental funds: 
 
Individual Schools Fund. The Individual Schools Fund includes revenues and expenditures of the activity 
funds of the individual schools. The primary revenue sources include funds held on the behalf of various 
clubs and organizations, receipts from athletic events, and proceeds from various fund raising activities.  
The primary expenditures are for athletic teams, club programs, activity buses, and instructional needs. 
 
The Board reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 
School Food Service Fund. The School Food Service Fund is used to account for the food service 
program within the school system. 
 
Child Care Fund. The Child Care Fund is used to account for the before and after school child care 
program within the school system.  
 
C.  Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, 
in which the Board gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, 
include grants and donations.  Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in 
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available.  The Board considers all revenues reported in 
the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. 
These could include federal, State, and county grants, and some charges for services.  Expenditures are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for claims and judgments and compensated 
absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset 
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  Acquisitions under leases qualifying as 
other than short-term are reported as other financing sources.  
 
Under the terms of grant agreements, the Board funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues.  Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there is 
both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program.  It is the Board’s policy to 
first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues.  
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D.  Budgetary Data 
 
The Board’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes.  Annual budgets 
are adopted for all funds, except for the individual schools special revenue funds, as required by the 
North Carolina General Statutes.  No budget is required by State law for individual school funds.  All 
appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end.   All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level for all annually 
budgeted funds.  The budget is presented in the accompanying financial statements and schedules at the 
purpose level for informational purposes only.  The Board has authorized the Superintendent to move 
moneys from one purpose to another within a fund.  Amendments are required for any revisions that alter 
total expenditures of any fund.  All amendments must be approved by the Board of Education.  During the 
year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary.  The budget ordinance must be 
adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that 
time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 
 
E.  Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Equity 

 
1.  Deposits and Investments 
 
All deposits of the Board are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required 
by State law [G.S. 115C-444].  The Board may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings 
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina.  Also, the Board may establish time 
deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of 
deposit.  The Board also has money credited in its name with the State Treasurer and may issue State 
warrants against these funds. 
 
State law [G.S. 115C-443] authorizes the Board to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations 
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North 
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of 
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' 
acceptances; the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT), an SEC-registered (2a-7) money 
market mutual fund; and the North Carolina State Treasurer’s Short Term Investment Fund (STIF).  The 
STIF is managed by the staff of the Department of State Treasurer and operated in accordance with State 
laws and regulations.  It is not registered with the SEC.  The STIF consists of an internal portion and an 
external portion in which the Board participates.  Investments are restricted to those enumerated in G.S. 
147-69.1. 
 
The Board’s investments are reported at amortized cost or at fair value as determined by quoted market 
prices or a matrix pricing model.  Bank deposits and the NCCMT are measured at amortized cost, which 
is the NCCMT’s share price.  Ownership interest of the STIF is determined on a fair market valuation 
basis as of fiscal year end in accordance with the STIF operating procedures.  Valuation of the underlying 
assets is performed by the custodian.  Under the authority of G.S. 147-69.3, no unrealized gains or losses 
of the STIF are distributed to external participants of the fund.   
 
2.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Board pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize 
investment income.  Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are 
considered cash and cash equivalents. 
 
3.  Inventories 
 
The inventories of the Board are valued at cost and the Board uses the first-in, first-out (FIFO) flow 
assumption in determining cost.  Proprietary Fund inventories consist of food and supplies and are 
recorded as expenses when consumed.  
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4.  Capital Assets 
  

Donated assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation or forfeiture.  Donated capital assets received after June 30, 2015 are recorded at acquisition 
value. All other capital assets are recorded at original cost. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated 
over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Certain items acquired before July 1, 1990 
are recorded at an estimated original historical cost.  The total of these estimates is not considered large 
enough that any errors would be material when capital assets are considered as a whole.   
 
It is the policy of the Board to capitalize all capital assets costing more than $5,000 with an estimated 
useful life of three or more years. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
 
Randolph County holds title to certain properties, which are reflected as capital assets in the financial 
statements of the Board.  The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase 
financing of acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of sales tax 
paid for construction costs.  Agreements between the County and the Board gives the schools full use of 
the facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of the facilities, and provides that the County will convey 
title of the property back to the Board, once all restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax 
reimbursement requirements have been met. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
  Years 
 
 Buildings and improvements      20 - 50 
 Equipment and furniture              3 - 12  
 Vehicles  6 
 Technology equipment  5 
  
 
Depreciation for assets that serve multiple purposes cannot be allocated ratably and is therefore reported 
as “unallocated depreciation” on the Statement of Activities. 
 
5.  Deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflow of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
an expense or expenditure until then.  The Board has one item that meets this criterion - contributions 
made to the pension plan in the current fiscal year.  The statement of financial position also reports a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will 
not be recognized as revenue until then.  The Board has one item that meet this criterion – pension 
related deferrals. 
 
6.  Long-term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities. 
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7.  Compensated Absences 
 
The Board follows the State’s policy for vacation and sick leave.  Employees may accumulate up to thirty 
(30) days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned.  For the Board, the 
current portion of the accumulated vacation pay is not considered to be material.  The Board’s liability for 
accumulated earned vacation and the salary-related payments as of June 30, 2023 is recorded in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements on a FIFO basis.  An estimate has been made 
based on prior years’ records of the current portion of compensated absences.  
 
The sick leave policy of the Board provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave.  Sick 
leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the 
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes.  Since the Board has no obligation for 
accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made. 
 
8.  Net Position/Fund Balances 
 
Net Position 
Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net 
investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents constraints 
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or 
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through State statute. 
 
Fund Balances 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of three classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.   
 
The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

 
Restricted fund balance – This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes 
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.  

 
Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by State 
Statute [G.S. 115C-425(a)].   
 
Restricted for school capital outlay - portion of fund balance that can only be used for school 
capital outlay. [G.S. 159-18 through 22] 

 
Restricted for Individual Schools – revenue sources restricted for expenditures for the various 
clubs and organizations, athletic events, and various fund raising activities for which they were 
collected. 
 
Restricted for Programs – revenue sources restricted in purpose in accordance with specified 
grants or donors, and not intended for general K-12 expenditures. 
 

Assigned fund balance – portion of fund balance that the Board of Education intends to use for specific 
purposes.  

 
Subsequent year’s expenditures – portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next year’s 
budget that is not already classified in restricted.  The Board of Education approves the 
appropriation. 
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Special revenues – portion of fund balance that represents the residual amount of revenues from 
tuition and fees, reimbursements, indirect costs and other financial resources in excess of related 
expenditures that the Board of Education has assigned to be expended within assigned purpose 
codes. 
 

Unassigned fund balance – the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes or other funds.   

 
The Board of Education has a management policy for revenue spending that provides guidance for 
programs with multiple revenue sources.  The Finance Officer will pay expenditures from restricted 
revenue sources first and then from general unrestricted revenues. For purposes of fund balance 
classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by 
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer 
has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the Board of Education.  
 
9.  Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
a. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 

government-wide statement of net position 
 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net position – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position.  The net adjustment of $12,825,849 consists of several elements as 
follows:   
 

Description Amount

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and are therefore not reported in the funds (total capital assets at historical 
cost on government-wide statement in governmental activities column) 119,278,525$           
Less Accumulated Depreciation (39,415,862)              

Net capital assets 79,862,663               

Pension related deferred outflows of resources 15,712,739               
OPEB related deferred outflows of resources 5,794,584                 

Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, 
do not require current resources to pay and are therefore not recorded in the 
fund statements:
Compensated absences (2,725,418)                
Net pension liability (26,270,192)              
Net OPEB liability (37,132,859)              
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (1,422,491)                
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (20,993,177)              

Total adjustment 12,825,849$             
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b. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities 

 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes 
a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net 
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.  There 
are several elements of that total adjustment of $15,335,918 as follows: 

 
Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as
assets in the statement of activities 9,591,527$          

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that
is recorded on the statement of activities but not in the fund statements (2,059,267)           

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included on
the Statement of Activities 4,897,555            

Contributions to the OPEB plans in the current fiscal year are not included on
the Statement of Activities 2,005,501            

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Supplemental taxes (51,196)                
OPEB nonemployer contributions 281,906               

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities that do not require the use of
current resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund
statements

Pension (expense) benefit (4,883,617)           
Net OPEB (expense) benefit 5,195,167            
Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide statements but 
not in the fund statements because they do not use current resources 358,342               

Total adjustment 15,335,918$         
 
10. Defined Benefit Pension Plan and OPEB Plans 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System (TSERS), the Retiree Health Benefit Fund (RHBF), 
and the Disability Income Plan of NC (DIPNC) and additions to/deductions from TSERS, RHBF, and 
DIPNC’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TSERS, 
RHBF, and DIPNC.  For this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which 
the contributions are due.  The Board’s employer contributions are recognized when due and the Board 
has a legal requirement to provide the contributions.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of TSERS, RHBF, and DIPNC.  Investments are reported at fair 
value. 
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NOTE 2 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 
A.  Assets 
 
1.  Deposits 
 
All of the Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods.  Under the 
Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are 
collateralized with securities held by the Board's agents in the unit’s name.  Under the Pooling Method, 
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State 
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary 
capacity for the Board, these deposits are considered to be held by the agent in the entity’s name.  The 
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing 
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits.  Depositories using the Pooling 
Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.  
The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Board or with the escrow agent.  Because 
of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the Board under the Pooling Method, 
the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows.  
However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each 
depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.  The Board has no policy 
regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. 
 
At June 30, 2023, the Board had deposits with banks and savings and loans with a carrying amount of 
$11,258,476 and with the State Treasurer of $-0-.  Cash on hand was $30 at June 30, 2023.  The bank 
balances with the financial institutions and the State Treasurer were $11,596,893 and $1,014,983, 
respectively.  Of these balances, $793,236 was covered by federal depository insurance and $11,818,640 
was covered by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the name of the State Treasurer. 
 
2.  Investments 
 
At June 30 2023, the Board had $-0- invested with the State Treasurer in the Short Term Investment 
Fund (STIF).  The STIF is unrated and had a weighted average maturity of 1.3 years at June 30, 2023. 
The Board had $-0- invested in the NCCMT as of June 30, 2023. The Board has no policy for managing 
interest rate risk or credit risk. All investments are measured using the market approach.  The STIF is 
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and valued using prices that are either directly or indirectly 
observable for an asset or liability.  
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3.  Accounts Receivable 
 
Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Due from
other funds Due from

(Internal other
Balances) governments Other Total

Governmental activities:
General Fund 566$              64,840$         9,481$           74,887$          
Other governmental activities 9,611             788,607         119,508         917,726          

Total governmental activities 10,177$         853,447$       128,989$       992,613$        

Business-type activities:
School Food Service Fund (10,177)$        105,127$       7,132$           102,082$        
Child Care Fund -                     -                     -                     -                      

Total business-type activities (10,177)$        105,127$       7,132$           102,082$        

 
 
Due from other governments consists of the following: 
 
 Governmental activities: 
   General Fund $ 64,840 Operating funds from County 
   Other Special Revenue Fund  308,257 Medicaid & County receivable 
   Capital Outlay Fund  480,350 Due from County 
               
      Total $ 853,447 
 
  Business-type activities:  
   School Food Service Fund $ 105,127 Federal reimbursement funds 
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4.  Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 3,038,935$       -$                      -$                      3,038,935$       
Construction in progress 18,334,203       470,573            18,320,521       484,255            

Total capital assets not being depreciated 21,373,138       470,573            18,320,521       3,523,190         

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 81,676,919       26,957,693       -                        108,634,612     
Land improvements 1,522,503         -                        -                        1,522,503         
Furniture and equipment 4,399,501         235,507            -                        4,635,008         
Vehicles 714,937            248,275            -                        963,212            

Total capital assets being depreciated 88,313,860       27,441,475       -                        115,755,335     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 31,352,000       1,896,951         -                        33,248,951       
Land improvements 1,252,663         34,384              -                        1,287,047         
Furniture and equipment 4,090,642         85,632              -                        4,176,274         
Vehicles 661,290            42,300              -                        703,590            

Total accumulated depreciation 37,356,595       2,059,267         -                        39,415,862       

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 50,957,265       76,339,473       

Governmental activity capital assets, net 72,330,403$     79,862,663$     
 
 

Business-type activities:
School Food Service Fund:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment 1,398,257$       43,755$            -$                      1,442,012$       
Vehicles 26,707              -                        -                        26,707              

  Total capital assets being depreciated 1,424,964         43,755              -                        1,468,719         

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment 1,152,566         35,210              -                        1,187,776         
Vehicles 26,707              -                        -                        26,707              

  Total accumulated depreciation 1,179,273         35,210              -                        1,214,483         

School Food Service capital assets, net 245,691$          254,236$          

 
Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instructional services 1,931,335$    
System-wide support services 42,300           
Unallocated depreciation 85,632           

Total 2,059,267$    
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5.  Significant Commitments 
 
At June 30, 2023, the Board had several construction project contracts in progress.   At year-end, the 
Board’s commitments with contractors for the remaining portion of the contracts to complete these 
projects totaled $478,000. 
 
B.  Liabilities 

 
1.  Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Obligations 

 
a.  Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System 
 
Plan Description.  The Board is a participating employer in the statewide Teachers’ and State Employees’ 
Retirement System (TSERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered 
by the State of North Carolina.  TSERS membership is comprised of employees of the State (state 
agencies and institutions), universities, community colleges, and certain proprietary component units 
along with the employees of Local Education Agencies and charter schools.  Article 1 of G.S. Chapter 
135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General 
Assembly.  Management of the plan is vested in the TSERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 
members – nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the 
state House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-
officio members.  The Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the State of North Carolina.  The State’s ACFR includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for TSERS.  That report may be obtained by 
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided.  TSERS provides retirement and survivor benefits.  Retirement benefits are 
determined as 1.82% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of 
creditable service.  A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member’s 
four highest consecutive years of compensation.  General employee plan members are eligible to retire 
with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of 
creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  General employee plan members 
are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 
60 with five years of creditable service.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of 
members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who have 
either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age or have completed five years of service 
and have reached age 60.  Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate 
Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions.  The plan does not provide for automatic post-
retirement benefit increases.  Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 
 
TSERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five 
years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  LEO plan 
members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service 
as an officer.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in 
active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years 
of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have 
reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, 
or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty.  Eligible 
beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the 
member’s contributions. 
 
Contributions.  Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 135-8 and may be amended 
only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  Board employees are required to contribute 6% of their 
compensation.  Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the TSERS Board 
of Trustees.  The Board’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2023 was 
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17.38% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year.  
Contributions to the pension plan from the Board were $4,914,263 for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Refunds of Contributions – Board employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of 
TSERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions.  By state law, refunds to members with 
at least five years of service include 4% interest.  State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service 
termination before the refund may be paid.  The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual’s 
right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by TSERS. 
 
At June 30, 2023, the Board reported a liability of $26,359,815 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022.  The total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 
2021.  The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 
utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The Board’s proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the Board’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the 
pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating 
TSERS employers, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2022 and at June 30, 2021, the Board’s 
proportion was .17760% and .17733%, respectively. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Board recognized pension expense of $4,902,693.  At June 30, 
2023, the Board reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 114,772$               359,288$           

Changes of assumptions 2,079,689              -                     

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments 8,657,620              -                     

Changes in proportion and differences between Board 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                         1,068,056          

Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date 4,914,263              -                     

      Total 15,766,344$          1,427,344$        

 
$4,914,263 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Board 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2024.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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Year ended June 30:
2024 2,296,539$        
2025 2,155,910          
2026 822,069             
2027 4,150,219          
2028 -                     
Thereafter -                     

Total 9,424,737$        
 

 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
Inflation 2.50 percent

Salary increases 3.25 to 8.05 percent, including inflation and 
productivity factor

Investment rate of return 6.50 percent, net of pension plan investment 
expense, including inflation  

 
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law 
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The current mortality rates are based 
on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population.  The 
healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an  
actuarial experience study prepared as of December 31, 2019 and adopted by the Board of Trustees on 
January 28, 2021. 
 
Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not 
included in the measurement. 
 
The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of 
current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and 
historical performance of investment strategies.  Fixed income return projections reflect current yields 
across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated 
for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons.  Global public equity return projections are established 
through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections.  Other asset 
categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis.  These 
projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The 
target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 
30, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 
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Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Fixed Income 33.0% 0.9%
Global Equity 38.0% 6.5%
Real Estate 8.0% 5.9%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.2%
Credit 7.0% 5.0%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 2.7%
     Total 100%

 
The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 
2017 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including 
TSERS.  The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic 
annualized figures.  The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively 
subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 2.50%.  All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 
 
Discount rate.  The discount rates used to measure the total pension liability reported at June 30, 2023 
and 2022 was 6.50% for both years.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on 
these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate.  
The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.50 percent, as well as what the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(5.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.50 percent) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease 
(5.50%)

Discount Rate 
(6.50%)

1% Increase 
(7.50%)

Board's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) 46,605,495$     26,359,815$     9,648,624$        
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. 
 
b.  Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
Healthcare Benefits 
 
Plan description. The Retiree Health Benefit Fund (RHBF) has been established as a fund to provide 
health benefits to retired and disabled employees and their applicable beneficiaries.  RHBF is established 
in Chapter 135, Article 1 of the General Statutes.  It is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit 
healthcare plan, exclusively for the benefit of former employees of the State, the University of North 
Carolina System, and community colleges.  In addition, LEAs, charter schools, and some select local 
governments also participate.   
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Management of the plan is vested in the State Health Plan Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 
members – eight appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the 
State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer the State Superintendent and the Director of the 
Office of State Human Resources who serve as ex-officio members.  RHBF is supported by a percent of 
payroll contribution from participating employing units.  Each year the percentage is set in legislation, as 
are the maximum per retiree contributions from RHBF to the State Health Plan.  The State Treasurer, with 
the approval of the State Health Plan Board of Trustees, then sets the employer contributions (subject to 
the legislative cap) and the premiums to be paid by retirees, as well as the health benefits to be provided 
through the State Health Plan. 
 
The financial statements and other required disclosures for the plan are presented in the State of North 
Carolina’s ACFR, which can be found at https://www.osc.nc.gov/public-information/reports.  
  
Benefits provided.   Plan benefits received by retired employees and disabled employees from RHBF are 
OPEB.  The healthcare benefits for retired and disabled employees who are not eligible for Medicare are 
the same as for active employees.  The plan options change when former employees become eligible for 
Medicare.  Medicare retirees have the option of selecting one of two fully-insured Medicare 
Advantage/Prescription Drug Plan (MA-PDP) options of the self-funded Traditional 70/30 preferred 
Provider Organization plan option that is also offered to non-Medicare members.  If the Traditional 70/30 
Plan is selected by a Medicare retiree, the self-funded State Health Plan coverage is secondary to 
Medicare.   
 
Those former employees who are eligible to receive medical benefits from RHBF are long-term disability 
beneficiaries of the Disability Income Plan of North Carolina (DIPNC) and retirees of the TSERS, the 
Consolidated Judicial Retirement System (CJRS), the Legislative Retirement System (LRS), the 
University Employees’ Optional Retirement Program (ORP), and a small number of local governments, 
with five or more years of contributory membership service in their retirement system prior to disability or 
retirement, with the following exceptions:  for employees first hired on or after October 1, 2006, and 
members of the General Assembly first taking office on or after February 1, 2007, future coverage as 
retired employees and retired members of the General Assembly is subject to the requirement that the 
future retiree have 20 or more years of retirement service credit in order to receive coverage on a 
noncontributory basis.  Employees first hired on or after October 1, 2006 and members of the General 
Assembly first taking office on or after February 1, 2007 with 10 but less than 20 years of retirement 
service credit are eligible for coverage on a partially contributory basis.  For such future retirees, the State 
will pay 50% of the State Health Plan’s noncontributory premium.   
 
Section 35.21 (c) and (d) of Session Law 2017-57 repeals retiree medical benefits for employees first 
hired January 1, 2021.  The new legislation amends Article 3B of Chapter 135 of the General Statutes to 
require that retirees must earn contributory retirement service in TSERS (or in an allowed local system 
unit), CJRS, or LRS prior to January 1, 2021, and not withdraw that service, in order to be eligible for 
retiree medical benefits under the amended law.  Consequently, members first hired on and after January 
1, 2021 will not be eligible to receive retiree medical benefits.   
 
RHBF’s benefit and contribution provisions are established by Chapter 135, Article 1 and Chapter 135, 
Article 3B of the General Statutes and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  
RHBF does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.  
  
Contributions.  By General Statute, accumulated contributions from employers to RHBF and any earnings 
on those contributions shall be used to provide health benefits to retired and disabled employees and 
their applicable beneficiaries.  By statute, contributions to RHBF are irrevocable.  Also by law, fund assets 
are dedicated to providing benefits to retired and disabled employees and their applicable beneficiaries 
and are not subject to the claims of creditors of the employers making contributions to RHBF.  However, 
RHBF assets may be used for reasonable expenses to administer the RHBF, including costs to conduct 
required actuarial valuations of state—supported retired employees’ health benefits.  Contribution rates to 
RHBF, which are intended to finance benefits and administrative expenses on a pay-as-you-go basis are 
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determined by the General Assembly in the Appropriations Bill. For the year ended June 30, 2023, the 
Board contributed 6.89% of covered payroll, which amounted to $1,983,554.  During the current fiscal 
year, the plan also recognized a one-time transfer of excess funding from the Public Employees Health 
Benefits Fund totaling $180.5 million, which was isolated from the OPEB expense and allocated to 
participating employers as a separate contribution.  The Board’s proportionate share of this contribution 
totaled $282,868. 
 
At June 30, 2023, Board reported a liability of $37,213,195 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability used to 
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2021.  The 
total OPEB liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 utilizing update 
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The Board’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was 
based on a projection of the Board’s present value of future salary, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 
2022 and at June 30, 2021, the Board’s proportion was .15671% and .15618%, respectively. 
 
$1,983,554 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Board 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net OPEB 
liability in the year ending June 30, 2024.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 
Year ended June 30:
2024 (6,534,375)$       
2025 (3,964,833)         
2026 (4,183,932)         
2027 (2,676,765)         
2028 -                     
Thereafter -                     

Total (17,359,905)$     
 

 
Actuarial assumptions.  Common actuarial assumptions for both OPEB plans follow individual note 
disclosures for each OPEB plan.  
 
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

Healthcare cost trend rates:

Medical 5.00-6.00%
Prescription drug 5.00-9.50%
Administrative costs 3.00%
Post-retirement mortality rates Pub-2010 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and females, 

adjusted for classification for some Participants, further adjusted with 
scaling factors varying by participant group, and projected for mortality 
improvement using Scale MP-2019

6.50%
3.25-8.05%, include 3.25% inflation and productivity factor

 
 
Discount rate. The discount rates used to measure the total OPEB liability for the RHBF at June 30, 2023 
and 2022 were 3.54% and 2.16%, respectively.  The projection of cash flow used to determine the 
discount rate assumed that contributions from employers would be made at the current statutorily 
determined contribution rate.  Based on the above assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was not 
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  As a result, 
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a municipal bond rate of 3.54% was used as the discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability.  
The 3.54% rate is based on the Bond Buyer 20-year General Obligation Index as of June 30, 2022.  
 
Sensitivity of the Board’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate.  
The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what the 
District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage point lower (2.54 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (4.54 percent) than the 
current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease 
(2.54%)

Discount Rate 
(3.54%)

1% Increase 
(4.54%)

Net OPEB liability 43,832,856$     37,213,195$     31,806,729$      
 
Sensitivity of the Board’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare trend 
rates.  The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what 
the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare 
cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current 
healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

Healthcare Trend Rates
1% Decrease (Medical- (Medical - 5.00-6.00%, 1% Increase (Medical-

4.00-5.00%, Pharmacy- Pharmacy - 5.00-9.50%, 6.00-7.00%, Pharmacy-

4.00-8.50%, Medicare Medicare  6.00-10.50%, Medicare

Advantage - 4.00%, Advantage - 5.00%, Advantage - 6.00%,

Administrative - 2.00%) Administrative - 3.00%) Administrative - 4.00%)

Net OPEB liability 30,632,412$                        37,213,195$                        45,719,797$                        

 
OPEB plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued ACFR for the State of North Carolina. 
 
Disability Benefits 
 
Plan description.  Short-term and long-term disability benefits are provided through the Disability Income 
Plan of North Carolina (DIPNC), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan, to the eligible 
members of TSERS which includes employees of the State, the University of North Carolina System, 
community colleges, certain Local Education Agencies, and ORP.   
 
Management of the plan is vested in the State Health Plan Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 
members – eight appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the 
State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer the State Superintendent and the Director of the 
Office of State Human Resources who serve as ex-officio members.  Management of the plan is vested in 
the State Health Plan Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members – eight appointed by the 
Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and 
the State Treasurer the State Superintendent and the Director of the Office of State Human Resources 
who serve as ex-officio members.  The financial statements and other required disclosures for the plan 
are presented in the State of North Carolina’s ACFR, which can be found at 
https://www.osc.nc.gov/public-information/reports.  
 
Benefits Provided.  Long-term disability benefits are payable as an OPEB from DIPNC after the 
conclusion of the short-term disability period or after salary continuation payments cease, whichever is 
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later, for as long as an employee is disabled.  An employee is eligible to receive long-term disability 
benefits provide the following requirements are met: (1) the employee has five or more years of 
contributing membership service in TSERS or ORP, earned within 96 months prior to the end of the short-
term disability period or cessation of salary continuation payments, whichever is later; (2) the employee 
must make application to receive long-term benefits within 180 days after the conclusion of the short-term 
disability period or after salary continuation payments cease or after monthly payments for Workers’ 
Compensation cease (excluding monthly payments for permanent partial benefits), whichever is later; (3) 
the employee must be certified by the Medical Board to be mentally or physically disabled for the further 
performance of his/her usual occupation; (4) the disability must have been continuous, likely to be 
permanent, and incurred at the time of active employment; (5) the employee must not be eligible to 
receive an unreduced retirement benefit from TSERS after (1) reaching the age of 65 and completing 5 
years of membership service, or (2) reaching the age of 60 and completing 25 years of creditable service, 
or (3) completing 30 years of service at any age.   
 
Contributions.  Benefit and contribution provisions are established by Chapter 135, Article 6, of the 
General Statutes and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The plan does not 
provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.  Disability income benefits are funded by 
actuarially determined employer contributions that are established in the Appropriations Bill by the 
General Assembly and coincide with the State fiscal year.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, 
employers made a statutory contribution of 0.10% of covered payroll which was equal to the actuarially 
required contribution.  Board contributions to the plan were $28,789 for the year ended June 30, 2023.  
 
The contributions cannot be separated between the amounts that relate to other postemployment benefits 
and employment benefits for active employees.  Those individuals who are receiving extended short-term 
disability benefit payments cannot be separated from the number of members currently eligible to receive 
disability benefits as an other postemployment benefit.   
 
At June 30, 2023, Board reported an OPEB liability of $46,347 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability.  The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability used to 
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2021.  The 
total OPEB liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 utilizing update 
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The Board’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was 
based on a projection of the Board’s present value of future salary, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 
2022 and at June 30, 2021, the Board’s proportion was .15580% and .15650%, respectively. 
 
$28,789 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Board contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net OPEB liability in the 
year ending June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 
Year ended June 30:
2024 24,439$             
2025 27,813               
2026 19,763               
2027 15,277               
2028 3,209                 
Thereafter 6,618                 

Total 97,119$             
 

 
Actuarial assumptions. Common actuarial assumptions for both OPEB plans follow individual note 
disclosures for each OPEB plan.  
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Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.25%-8.05%, include 3.25% inflation and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 3.00%, net of OPEB plan expense, including inflation  
 
Sensitivity of the Board’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate.  
The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what the 
District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage point lower (2.00 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (4.00 percent) than the 
current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease 
(2.00%)

Discount Rate 
(3.00%)

1% Increase 
(4.00%)

Net OPEB liability 57,071$          46,347$          35,597$           
 
Common actuarial assumptions for both OPEB plans.  The total OPEB liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 2021 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied 
to all periods in the measurement, unless otherwise specified.  The total OPEB liability was calculated 
through the use of update procedures to roll forward from the actuarial valuation date to the measurement 
date of June 30, 2022.  The update procedures incorporated the actuarial assumptions used in the 
valuation.  The entry age normal cost method was utilized. 
 
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. teacher, general, 
law enforcement officer), and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The current mortality rates are 
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population.  
The mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.   
 
The actuarial assumptions were based on the results of an actuarial experience review for the period 
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2019.   
 
DIPNC is primarily invested in the Bond Index Investment Pool as of June 30, 2021. The long-term 
expected rate of return was determined based on the combination of expected future real rates of return 
and expected inflation. The long-term expected real rate of return for the Bond Index Investment Pool as 
of June 30, 2022 is 1.2%. 
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Following  is  information  related  to  OPEB  expense,  proportionate  share,  assets,  liabilities,  deferred 
outflows  of  resources and  deferred inflows of resources reported by the Board as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2023: 
 

RHBF DIPNC Total

OPEB Expense (Benefit) (5,266,749)$    65,901$          (5,200,848)$    

OPEB Liability (Asset) 37,213,195     46,347            37,259,542     

Proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) 0.15671% 0.15580%

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 361,291          51,952            413,243          

Changes of assumptions 2,979,400       2,979              2,982,379       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan 
investments 322,250          49,021            371,271          
Changes in proportion and differences between Board 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 29,116            6,001              35,117            

Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,983,554       28,789            2,012,343       

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,675,611       138,742          5,814,353       

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Differences between Expected and actual experience 102,973          -                      102,973          

Changes of assumptions 16,936,601     8,586              16,945,187     
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan 
investments -                      -                      -                      
Changes in proportion and differences between Board 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 4,012,388       4,248              4,016,636       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 21,051,962     12,834            21,064,796     

 
2.  Accounts Payable  
 
Accounts payable as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Vendors

Governmental activities:
General Fund 785,419$        
Other governmental activities 540,314          

Total governmental activities 1,325,733$     

Business-type activities:
School Food Service Fund 47,788$          
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3.  Unearned Revenues 
 
The balance in unearned revenues at year-end is composed of the following elements

Business-type activities:
Prepayments of meals (School Food Service Fund) 16,921$          

 
4.  Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

 
The balances in deferred outflows and inflows of resources at year-end is composed of the following: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 528,015$               462,261$           

Changes of assumptions 5,062,068              16,945,187        

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 
and OPEB plan investments 9,028,891              -                     

Changes in proportion and differences between Board 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 35,117                   5,084,692          

Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date 6,926,606              -                     

      Total 21,580,697$          22,492,140$      
 

 
5.  Risk Management 

 
The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The Board participates in the 
North Carolina School Boards Trust (the Trust), a member funded risk management program 
administered by the North Carolina School Boards Association.  Through the Trust, the Board maintains 
general liability and errors and omissions coverage of $1 million per claim.  The Trust has an annual 
aggregate limit for both general liability and errors and omissions of $2,550,000 each.  The Trust is 
reinsured through commercial companies for losses in excess of $150,000 per claim for errors and 
omissions and general liability coverage.  Statutory workers’ compensation coverage is purchased 
through a private insurer for employees to the extent they are paid from federal and local funds.  Workers’ 
compensation coverage is provided by the State of North Carolina through a self-insured fund, to the 
extent employees are paid from State funds.  The Board also participates in the State Public Education 
Property Insurance Fund (the Fund), a voluntary, self-insured risk control and risk financing fund 
administered by the North Carolina Department of Insurance.  The Fund insures the tangible property 
assets of the Board.  Coverage is provided on an “all risk” perils contract.  Buildings and contents are 
insured on a replacement cost basis.  The Fund purchases excess reinsurance to protect the assets of 
the Fund in the event of a catastrophic event.  The Fund maintains a self-insured retention of $10 million.  
Excess reinsurance is purchased through commercial insurers. A limit of $5 million per occurrence is 
provided on flood, earthquake, business interruption and extra expense.  $10 million per occurrence is 
provided on increased cost of construction.   
 
The Trust also provides auto coverage through the Automobile and Inland Marine Fund. Through the 
Trust, the Board maintains combined single limit bodily injury and physical damage coverage of 
$1,000,000, uninsured/underinsured motorist coverage of $1,000,000, auto medical payments coverage 
of $2,000, and comprehensive and collision coverage of actual current value. 
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The Board also participates in the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Comprehensive Major Medical Plan, a 
self-funded risk financing pool of the State administered by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of North Carolina.  
Through the Plan, permanent full-time employees of the Board are eligible to receive health care benefits.  
The Board pays most of the cost of coverage for employees enrolled in the Comprehensive Major 
Medical Plan. 
   
In accordance with G.S. 115C-442, the Board’s employees who have custody of the Board’s monies at 
any given time are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond.  The finance officer is bonded 
for $250,000.  The remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for 
$50,000. 
 
The Board carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.  There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the 
past three fiscal years. 
 
6.  Long-Term Obligations 
 
Long-Term Obligation Activity 

 
The following is a summary of changes in the Board’s long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended  
June 30, 2023: 

Current
July 1, 2022 Increases Decreases June 30, 2023 Portion

Governmental activities:
Net pension liability 8,277,084$         17,993,108$       -$                       26,270,192$       -$                       
Net OPEB liability 48,128,029         -                         10,995,170         37,132,859         -                         
Compensated absences 3,083,760           2,306,627           2,664,969           2,725,418           1,347,427           

    Total 59,488,873$       20,299,735$       13,660,139$       66,128,469$       1,347,427$         

Business-type activities:
Net pension liability 26,572$              63,051$              -$                       89,623$              -$                       
Net OPEB liability 154,504              -                         27,821                126,683              -                         
Compensated absences 11,546                29,690                28,621                12,615                4,603                  

   Total 192,622$            92,741$              56,442$              228,921$            4,603$                
 
Compensated absences, net pension and net OPEB liabilities related to governmental activities are 
typically liquidated by the General and other governmental funds.   
 
C.  Interfund Balances and Activity 
 
1.    Interfund balances 
 
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2023 is as follows: 
 
 Receivable Fund Payable Fund  Amount  
 
 Other Special Revenue Fund School Food Service Fund $ 16,064 
 School Food Service Fund General Fund  6,453 
 General Fund School Food Service Fund  566 
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The amounts above represents unpaid indirect cost owed back to the School Food Service Fund from the 
Other Special Revenue Fund, school meal charges owed to the School Food Service fund from the 
General fund and proportionate share of workers compensation owed from the School Food Service fund 
to the General fund. These amounts are expected to be paid prior to June 30, 2024. 
 
 
2.  Transfers to/from other Funds 
 
Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2023 consist of the following: 
 
From the State Public School Fund to the School Food Service Fund for  
  personnel costs $ 45,000 
 
D. Fund Balance 
 
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of fund balance 
in the General Fund that is available for appropriation.  
               

Total fund balance - General Fund 4,736,838$         

Less:
Stabilization by State statute (369,919)             
Appropriated Fund Balance in the 2023-2024 budget (704,968)             

Remaining fund balance 3,661,951$         
 

 
Encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts 
that remain unperformed at year-end.  Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Encumbrances

General Fund 295,032$          
 

 
 
NOTE 3 – OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND – OTHER REVENUES 
 
Other revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 in the Other Special Revenue Fund consists of 
the following: 
           

Local sales tax 22,324$               
Medicaid reimbursement program 509,067               
Indirect costs allocated 571,614               
Rental of school property 1,301                   
Tuition and fees 617,378               
Private grants and programs 100,660               

Total other revenues 1,822,344$         
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NOTE 4 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 
 
Federal and State Assisted Programs 
 
The Board has received proceeds from several federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of these grants 
are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant 
agreements.  Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies.  
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial.  No provision has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys. 
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

SCHEDULE OF THE BOARD'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
TEACHERS' AND STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Board's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.17760% 0.17733% 0.18937% 0.18977% 0.19100%

Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) 26,359,815$    8,303,656$      22,879,678$    19,673,374$    18,967,345$    

Board's covered payroll 27,436,940$    26,719,044$    26,893,371$    26,959,571$    25,836,697$    

Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 96.07% 31.08% 85.08% 72.97% 73.41%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 84.14% 94.86% 85.98% 87.56% 87.61%

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Board's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.19600% 0.19400% 0.20600% 0.20800% 0.20400%

Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) 15,557,058$    17,855,420$    7,588,928$      2,440,043$      12,366,666$    

Board's covered payroll 25,319,199$    24,177,624$    25,340,684$    25,170,272$    24,396,059$    

Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 60.21% 73.85% 29.95% 9.69% 49.06%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 89.51% 87.32% 94.64% 98.24% 90.60%

*  The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

TEACHERS' AND STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Contractually required contribution 4,914,263$      4,494,171$      3,949,073$      3,488,070$      3,313,332$      

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 4,914,263        4,494,171        3,949,073        3,488,070        3,313,332        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Board's covered payroll 28,424,620$    27,436,940$    26,719,044$    26,893,371$    26,959,571$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 17.38% 16.38% 14.78% 12.97% 12.29%

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 2,785,196$      2,526,360$      2,212,253$      2,318,673$      2,186,176$      

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 2,785,196        2,526,360        2,212,253        2,318,673        2,186,176        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Board's covered payroll 25,836,697$    25,319,199$    24,177,624$    25,340,684$    25,170,272$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 10.78% 9.98% 9.15% 9.15% 8.69%

SCHEDULE OF BOARD CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

SCHEDULE OF THE BOARD'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY
RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT FUND 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Board's proportion of the net OPEB liability/asset 0.15671% 0.15618% 0.16525% 0.16567% 0.16900%

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
(asset) 37,213,195$   48,282,533$   45,841,671$   52,418,497$   48,037,418$   

Board's covered-employee payroll 27,436,940$   26,719,044$   26,893,371$   26,959,571$   25,836,697$   

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/asset 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 135.63% 180.70% 170.46% 194.43% 185.93%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
OPEB liability/asset 10.58% 7.72% 6.92% 4.40% 4.40%

2018 2017

Board's proportion of the net OPEB liability/asset 0.18100% 0.17100%

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
(asset) 59,406,863$   74,274,206$   

Board's covered-employee payroll 25,319,199$   24,177,624$   

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/asset 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 234.63% 307.20%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
OPEB liability/asset 3.52% 2.41%

*  The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.
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SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS* 

Note:  This is a ten year schedule.  However, GASB 75 was not adopted until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  Therefore, there are only seven years 
of data presented.



ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT FUND

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Contractually required contribution 1,983,554$      1,725,784$      1,784,832$      1,740,001$     1,690,365$      

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 1,983,554        1,725,784        1,784,832        1,740,001       1,690,365        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                     

Board's covered payroll 28,424,620$    27,436,940$    26,719,044$    26,893,371$   26,959,571$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 6.89% 6.29% 6.68% 6.47% 6.27%

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 1,563,120$      1,471,045$      1,353,947$      1,391,204$     1,359,195$      

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 1,563,120        1,471,045        1,353,947        1,391,204       1,359,195        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                     

Board's covered payroll 25,836,697$    25,319,199$    24,177,624$    25,340,684$   25,170,272$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 6.05% 5.81% 5.60% 5.49% 5.40%
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

SCHEDULE OF THE BOARD'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET)
DISABILITY INCOME PLAN OF NORTH CAROLINA

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Board's proportion of the net OPEB liability/asset 0.15580% 0.15650% 0.16713% 0.16807% 0.16800%

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
(asset) 46,347$          (25,563)$         (82,218)$         (72,522)$         (51,108)$         

Board's covered-employee payroll 27,436,940$   26,719,044$   26,893,371$   26,959,571$   25,836,697$   

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/asset 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 0.17% 0.10% 0.31% 0.27% 0.20%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
OPEB liability/asset 90.34% 105.18% 115.57% 113.00% 108.47%

2018 2017

Board's proportion of the net OPEB liability/asset 0.17500% 0.17500%

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
(asset) (106,691)$       (108,750)$       

Board's covered-employee payroll 25,319,199$   24,177,624$   

Board's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/asset 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 0.42% 0.45%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
OPEB liability/asset 116.23% 116.06%

*  The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.
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SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS* 

Note:  This is a ten year schedule.  However, GASB 75 was not adopted until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  Therefore, there are only seven years 
of data presented.



ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

DISABILITY INCOME PLAN OF NORTH CAROLINA

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Contractually required contribution 28,789$           24,693$           24,047$           26,893$          37,743$           
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 28,789             24,693             24,047             26,893            37,743             

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                     

Board's covered payroll 28,424,620$    27,436,940$    26,719,044$    26,893,371$   26,959,571$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.10% 0.09% 0.09% 0.10% 0.14%

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 36,171$           96,213$           99,128$           103,897$        110,749$         
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 36,171             96,213             99,128             103,897          110,749           

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                     

Board's covered payroll 25,836,697$    25,319,199$    24,177,624$    25,340,684$   25,170,272$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.14% 0.38% 0.41% 0.41% 0.44%
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INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES



  
GENERAL FUND

Final Variance With
Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Randolph County

County appropriation 6,387,719$         6,390,613$         2,894$                

Other:
Fines and forfeitures 275,000              247,613              (27,387)               
Supplemental school taxes 3,500,000           3,687,032           187,032              
Interest earned on investment 500                     42,512                42,012                
Miscellaneous 25,000                -                          (25,000)               

Total other 3,800,500           3,977,157           176,657              

Total revenues 10,188,219         10,367,770         179,551              

Expenditures:
  Current:

Instructional services:
Regular instructional 2,948,088           2,846,459           101,629              
Special populations 701,730              698,689              3,041                  
Alternative programs 442,579              436,627              5,952                  
School leadership 536,517              536,517              -                          
Co-curricular 282,546              282,546              -                          
School-based support 267,000              253,708              13,292                

Total instructional services 5,178,460           5,054,546           123,914              

System-wide support services:
Support and development 89,200                89,200                -                          
Special population support and development 131,537              131,537              -                          
Alternative programs and services
  support and development 24,760                15,147                9,613                  
Technology support 572,727              572,727              -                          
Operational support 3,173,389           3,134,996           38,393                
Financial and human resource services 301,923              296,539              5,384                  
Accountability 40,131                35,022                5,109                  
System-wide pupil support 40,828                40,507                321                     
Policy, leadership and public relations 688,582              657,756              30,826                

Total system-wide support services 5,063,077           4,973,431           89,646                

ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
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GENERAL FUND

Expenditures: (Continued)
  Current:

Nutrition 11,000                6,453                  4,547                  

Nonprogrammed charges:
Payments to other governments 685,682              685,682              -                          

Total expenditures 10,938,219         10,720,112         218,107              

Revenues over (under) expenditures (750,000)             (352,342)             397,658              

Fund  balance appropriated 750,000              -                          (750,000)             

Net change in fund balance -$                        (352,342)             (352,342)$           

Fund balance:
Beginning of year 5,089,180           

End of year 4,736,838$         
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023



Net change
in fund Fund balances Fund balances

Revenues Expenditures balance June 30, 2022 June 30, 2023

Asheboro High 374,598$        392,074$        (17,476)$         117,689$        100,213$        

Balfour Elementary 98,470            92,300            6,170              7,388              13,558            

Charles W. McCray Elementary 37,671            38,429            (758)                14,169            13,411            

Donna Lee Loflin Elementary 53,572            56,277            (2,705)             13,171            10,466            

Early Childhood Dev. Center 48,914            49,527            (613)                4,124              3,511              

Guy B. Teachey Elementary 49,443            42,371            7,072              15,090            22,162            

Lindley Park Elementary 47,675            46,046            1,629              14,138            15,767            

North Asheboro Middle 108,699          106,278          2,421              52,843            55,264            

South Asheboro Middle 61,516            56,650            4,866              36,016            40,882            

Totals 880,558$        879,952$        606$               274,628$        275,234$        

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   
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Final Variance With
Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Randolph County:

Bond proceeds 10,380,885$   9,422,955$     (957,930)$         
County appropriations 1,071,830       1,071,830       -                        

Total Randolph County 11,452,715     10,494,785     (957,930)           

Other:
Interest earned on investments -                      10,401            10,401              
Insurance proceeds -                      3,180              3,180                
Miscellaneous -                      158,353          158,353            

Total other -                      171,934          171,934            

Total revenues 11,452,715     10,666,719     (785,996)           

Expenditures:
Capital outlay:

Real property and buildings:
Asheboro High School -                      9,011,974       -                        
Various HVAC Projects -                      176,526          -                        
Other real property and buildings -                      415,842          -                        

Total real property and buildings 11,199,265     9,604,342       1,594,923         

Furnishings and equipment 1,188,424       1,033,655       154,769            

Buses and motor vehicles 75,000            64,274            10,726              

Total capital outlay 12,462,689     10,702,271     1,760,418         

Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,009,974)      (35,552)           974,422            

Fund  balance appropriated 1,009,974       -                      (1,009,974)        

Net change in fund balance -$                    (35,552)           (35,552)$           

Fund balance:
Beginning of year 2,451,690       

End of year 2,416,138$     

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
  BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)  

Final Variance With
Budget Actual Final Budget

Operating revenues -  food sales 607,000$            250,240$            (356,760)$           

Operating expenditures:
Business support services:
Purchase of food -                          1,258,151           -                          
Donated commodities -                          206,080              -                          
Salaries and benefits -                          1,312,817           -                          
Indirect costs -                          106,779              -                          
Materials and supplies -                          17,630                -                          
Non-capitalized equipment -                          225,569              -                          
Contracted services -                          202,947              -                          
Other -                          19,127                -                          
Capital outlay -                          43,755                -                          

Total operating expenditures 4,500,000           3,392,855           1,107,145           

Operating loss (3,893,000)          (3,142,615)          750,385              

Nonoperating revenues:
Federal reimbursements 3,598,300           2,679,039           (919,261)             
Federal commodities 220,000              206,080              (13,920)               
State reimbursements 16,500                92,965                76,465                
Interest earned 5,500                  18,854                13,354                
Other 7,700                  1,854                  (5,846)                 

Total nonoperating revenues 3,848,000           2,998,792           (849,208)             

Revenues over (under) expenditures
before other financing sources (45,000)               (143,823)             (98,823)               

Other financing sources:
Transfers from other funds 45,000                45,000                -                          

Net change in fund balance -$                        (98,823)               (98,823)$             

Reconciliation of modified accrual to full accrual basis:
Reconciling items:
Depreciation (35,210)               
Net OPEB asset (82)                      
Net pension liability (63,051)               
Net OPEB liability 27,821                
Deferred outflows 25,833                
Deferred inflows 20,598                
Equipment purchases 43,755                
Increase in compensated absences payable (6,556)                 
Decrease in inventories (17,408)               

(103,123)$           Change in net position (full accrual)

ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE FUND  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

Final Variance With
Budget Actual Final Budget

Operating revenues:
Child care fees 400,000$        205,762$       (194,238)$      

Operating expenditures:
Regular community services:

Purchase of food -                      18,703           -                     
Salaries and benefits -                      134,252         -                     
Contracted services 51,808           
Materials and supplies -                      14,502           -                     

Total operating expenditures 400,000          219,265         180,735         

Operating loss -$                    (13,503)          (13,503)$        

Reconciliation of modified accrual to full accrual basis:
Reconciling items:

Decrease in compensated absences payable 5,487             

Change in net position (full accrual) (8,016)$          

CHILD CARE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023  

ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION   
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Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 

with Government Auditing Standards 
 
 

 
 
To the Asheboro City Board of Education 
Asheboro, North Carolina 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Asheboro City Board of Education, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprises the Asheboro 
City Board of Education, North Carolina’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon 
dated November 29, 2023.  
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Asheboro City Board 
of Education’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might 
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Asheboro City Board of Education’s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

  
November 29, 2023 
West End, North Carolina 
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Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W

 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Report On Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act 
 
 

To the Asheboro City Board of Education 
Asheboro, North Carolina 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Asheboro City Board of Education, North Carolina’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit 
Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Board’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2023.  The Asheboro City Board of Education’s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, the Asheboro City Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.  
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance) and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Our responsibilities under those standards, the 
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
Asheboro City Board of Education and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Asheboro City Board of 
Education’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Asheboro 
City Board of Education's federal programs. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on Asheboro City Board of Education's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about Asheboro City Board of Education's compliance with 
the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, we 
 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding Asheboro City Board of Education's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 
 

 obtain an understanding of Asheboro City Board of Education's internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Asheboro City Board of Education's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Accordingly, this report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 
 

  
November 29, 2023 
West End, North Carolina 
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Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W

 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Report On Compliance for Each Major State Program and Report on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act 
 

 
To the Asheboro City Board of Education 
Asheboro, North Carolina 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major State Program 
 
We have audited Asheboro City Board of Education, North Carolina’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the Board’s major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
The Asheboro City Board of Education’s major State programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, the Asheboro City Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.  
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major State Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and applicable sections of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance) as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act. Our responsibilities under those standards, the Uniform Guidance and 
the State Single Audit Implementation Act are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of Compliance section of our report. We are required to be independent of Asheboro City Board of 
Education and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State program. Our audit does 
not provide a legal determination of the Asheboro City Board of Education’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Asheboro 
City Board of Education's State programs. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on Asheboro City Board of Education's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about Asheboro City Board of Education's compliance with 
the requirements of each major State program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, we 
 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding Asheboro City Board of Education's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 
 

 obtain an understanding of Asheboro City Board of Education's internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Asheboro City Board of Education's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
State program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a State program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Accordingly, this report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 
 

  
November 29, 2023 
West End, North Carolina 
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Page 1 of 2 
ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 
Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial statements 
 Audited were prepared in accordance to GAAP: Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
 Material weakness(es) identified?  No 
 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
 considered to be material weaknesses  None Identified for Reporting 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted  No 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major federal programs: 
 
 Material weakness(es) identified?  No 
 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
 considered to be material weaknesses None Identified for Reporting 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for   
major federal programs   Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No 
 
Identification of major federal programs: 
 
       AL Numbers      Names of Federal Programs or Clusters 
 
   Special Education Cluster: 

84.027 Grants to States – IDEA, part B (611) 
84.027 Special Needs Targeted Assistance 
84.027 Coordinated Early Intervening Services 
84.027 COVID-19 – ARP – Grants to States – IDEA, part B (611) 
84.173   Preschool Program – IDEA, Part B (619) 
84.173   Preschool Targeted Assistance 
 
84.425  COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Funds 
84.010  Title I – Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
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Page 2 of 2 
ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 
Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results (Continued) 
 
Federal Awards (Continued) 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B Programs $  750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 
 
 
State Awards 
 
Internal control over major State programs: 
 
 Material weakness(es) identified? No 
 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
 considered to be material weaknesses None Identified for Reporting 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 
for major State programs Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act? No 
 
Identification of major State program: 
 
 Program Name 
 
 State Public School Fund 
   
 
Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 
No findings were noted that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
 
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
No findings and questioned costs related to the audit of federal awards aggregating $25,000 or more 
were noted. 
 
 
Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
No findings and questioned costs related to the audit of State awards aggregating $25,000 or more were 
noted. 
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 
There were no audit findings reported in the prior year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Page 1 of 3
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

State/
Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through AL Grantor's
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

 
Federal Grants:

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Agriculture:

Child Nutrition Cluster:
Noncash Assistance (Commodities):

National School Lunch Program 10.555 PRC 035 206,080$       

Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 PRC 035 771,761         
National School Lunch Program 10.555 PRC 035 1,692,615      
After School Snack Program 10.555 PRC 035 28,337           
Supply Chain Assistance Funds 10.555 PRC 035 125,330         
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 PRC 035 60,996           

Cash Assistance Subtotal 2,679,039      

   Total Child Nutrition Cluster 2,885,119      

Local Food for Schools Cooperative Agreement Program 8,706             

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 2,893,825      

U.S. Department of Education
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

Title I Cluster:
Title I, Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 PRC 050 1,484,725      

Supporting Effective Instruction 84.367 PRC 103 205,217         
Language Acquisition Grant 84.365 PRC 104 77,337           
Language Acquisition Grant - Significant Increase 84.365 PRC 111 9,700             
Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 PRC 108 143,894         

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Page 2 of 3
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

State/
Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through AL Grantor's
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

 
Education Stabilization Fund:

CARES Act:
COVID-19 - ESSER I - K-12 Emergency Relief Fund 84.425D PRC 163 82,451           
COVID-19 - ESSER I - Digital Curricula 84.425D PRC 165 32,022           
COVID-19 - ESSER I - Learning Management System 84.425D PRC 166 3,303             
COVID-19 - GEER I - Specialized Instructional Support

Personnel for COVID-19 Response 84.425C PRC 169 56,166           
CRRSA:

COVID-19 - ESSER II - K-12 Emergency Relief Fund 84.425D PRC 171 2,241,651      
COVID-19 - ESSER II - Supplemental Contracted  84.425D

Instructional Support Funding PRC 173 29,570           
COVID-19 - CRRSA - ESSER II - Learning Loss Funding 84.425D PRC 176 43,585           
COVID-19 - CRRSA - ESSER II - Summer Career 

Accelerator Program 84.425D PRC 177 73,345           
ARP:

COVID-19 - ESSER III - K-12 Emergency Relief Fund 84.425D PRC 181 1,551,849      
COVID-19 - ESSER III - Homeless 84.425W PRC 183 10,779           
COVID-19 - ESSER III - Principal Retention Supplements 84.425U PRC 206 5,279             

Total COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund 84.425 4,130,000      

Special Education Cluster:
Grants to States - IDEA, Part B (611) 84.027 PRC 060 1,016,550      
Special Needs Targeted Assistance 84.027 PRC 118 4,596             
COVID-19 - ARP - Grants to States - IDEA, part B (611) 84.027 PRC 185 125,545         
Preschool Grants - IDEA, Part B (619) 84.173 PRC 049 34,692           
Preschool Targeted Assistance 84.173 PRC 119 2,214             

Total Special Education Cluster 1,183,597      

Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States
Program Development 84.048 PRC 017 84,613           

Total U.S. Department of Education 7,319,083      

U.S. Department of Defense
Direct Program:

ROTC 12.000 PRC 301 53,140           

Total Federal Assistance 10,266,048    

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
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ASHEBORO CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION Page 3 of 3
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

State/
Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through AL Grantor's
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

 
State Grants:

 
N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

Cash Assistance:
State Public School Fund Various 33,097,868    
Career and Technical Education:

State Months of Employment PRC 013 1,607,773      
Program Support Funds PRC 014 319,111         

Driver Training PRC 012 59,431           
School Technology Fund PRC 015 64,573           

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction 35,148,756    

N.C. Department of Agriculture
State Reduced Lunch Program 13,712           
State Reduced Breakfast Program 7,674             

Total N.C. Department of Agriculture 21,386           

N.C. Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Child Development:

Smart Start PRC 401 58,500           
State School Nurse Initiative PRC 615 100,000         

Child and Adult Care Food Program 71,579           

Total NC Department of Health and Human Services 230,079         

Total State Assistance 35,400,221    

Total Federal and State Assistance 45,666,269$  

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards:

Note 1.  Basis of Presentation

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
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The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and State
grant activity of Asheboro City Board of Education under the programs of the federal government and the State of
North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information in this SEFSA is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Asheboro City Board of Education, it
is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of Asheboro
City Board of Education.

Note 2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  

Asheboro City Board of Education has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.



CALENDAR OF UPCOMING EVENTS - January 11, 2024 Board Meeting
DATE TIME EVENT LOCATION

Monday, Janury 15 All Day HOLIDAY All Schools
Monday, January 22-
Tuesday, January 23 All Day Required Teacher Workdays All Schools

Monday, January 29 6:00 p.m. Randolph Sports Council Scholarship Banquet Snyder Farms Restaurant
Monday, February 5 6:00 p.m. Randolph County Commissioners Meeting Old Historic Courthouse

Thursday, February 8 6:00 p.m.
Joint Board of Education  Meeting with Randolph County 
Commissioners Professional Development Center

Thursday, February 8 7:30 p.m. Board of Education Meeting Professional Development Center
Thursday, February 22-
Sunday, February 25 All Day COSSBA National Conference Dallas, TX
Tuesday, February 27 7:00 p.m. AHS/SAMS Chorus MPA Showcase Concert Asheboro High School Performing Arts Center
Friday, March 1 7:00 p.m. All-Randolph County Honor Band Concert Asheboro High School Performing Arts Center
Thursday, March 7 8:30 a.m. PTEC Signature Schools Breakfast UNCG Cone Ballroom
Saturday, March 9 TBD Board Retreat Professional Development Center
Tuesday, March 12 7:00 p.m. Middle School Festival Band Concert Asheboro High School Performing Arts Center
Thursday, March 14 7:00 p.m. AHS Band Festival Showcase Concert Asheboro High School Performing Arts Center
Friday, March 22 8:00-10:00 a.m. Legislative Breakfast Professional Development Center
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